TRI-CITY HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
AGENDA FOR A REGULAR MEETING

OF THE PROFESSIONAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE

OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
February 9, 2017 — 12:00 p.m. — Assembly Room

Tri-City Medical Center, 4002 Vista Way, Oceanside, CA 92056

1

The Committee may make recommendations
to the Board on any of the items listed below,

unless the item is specifically labeled “Informational Only”

Page Time Requestor/
Agenda ltem Nos. Allotted | Presenter

Call To Order/Opening Remarks 2 min. | Chair
Approval of Agenda 1-2 2 min. Chair
Public Comments 5 min. Standard
NOTE: During the Committee’s consideration of any Agenda item,
members of the public also have the right to address the Committee at that
time regarding that item.
Ratification of minutes of the January 2017 Meeting 3-10 2 min. Committee
New Business
Consideration and Possible Approval of Policies and Procedures 11 All
Patient Care Services

1. Child Passenger Restraint System Education Policy 12-13

2. Consent for Operative or Other Procedures 14-19

3. Diabetes Education Procedure 20-21

4. In Custody Patients’ Policy 22-25

5. Knee Immobilizer Application and Range of Motion (ROM) Brace 26

Procedure

6. Swallow Screening in the Adult Patient Procedure 27-28
Administration Policies and Procedures

1. Administrator-On Call-281 29

2. Lostand Found Articles — 202 30-32
Unit Specific
Infection Control

1. Transmissible Spongiform Encephalopathies (TSE) 33-41
Surgical Services

1. Block Time Policy 42-43

2. Bumping Surgery Procedures Policy 44-45

3. Disaster and Emergency Preparedness Policy 46-50

4. OR Committee Policy 51-52

5. Pre-Operative Requirements Policy 53-55

6. Safe Medical Device Act — Tracking and Reporting Policy 56-57

7. Scheduling Surgical Procedures Policy 58-62

8. Scope of Service for Surgical Services Policy 63-65
Telemetry

1. Assignments 66-69
Women and Newborn Services

1. Hydralazine Hydrochloride 70-72

2. Neonatal Team Attendance at a Delivery 73-75

3. Standards of Care: Newborn 76-87




4. Standards of Care: Postpartum

88-99

6. Review and Discussion of CLINICAL Contracts- NO Contracts To Review
(Discussion/ Possible Action)
7. Motion to go into Closed Session 2 min. Committee
8. CLOSED SESSION 30 min. | Chair
a. Reports of the Hospital Medical Audit and/or Quality Assurance
Committee (Health & Safety Code Section 32155)
b. Conference with Legal Counsel — Significant exposure to litigation
(Government Code Section 54956.9(b))
9. Reports from the Committee Chairperson of any Action Taken in 10 min. | Chair
Closed Session (Government Code, Section 54957.1)
10. Comments from Members of the Committee 5 min. Committee
11. The next meeting of the Professional Affairs Committee of the Board is on 1 min Chair
March 9, 2017.
12. Adjournment 1 min Chair




olignd
8y} JO si1aquiaw Wwoly sjuawwo? buipiebal
ydeisbesed ay) peas j|syou Jo1oaiqg

“wiey ayy

JO uUonEIBPISUOD S 2WILLOD

alojeq olgnd ayy 0}

}saiajui Jo way Aue uo anqgnd
3y} Jo sioquisw AgQ SjUBWIWOD °¢

[IRYIUAN J10j03lI0
"IV d 10} 1oquidul preog mau
ay) se 291U 3y} 0] Ssei) uuy ybio
"sselo) Jojoang Ag papuodas pue | 10}oaa( peanposul Ajjaug |IsUdUA 10308l
ounsobe(g Joyoalq Ag apews sem "SUOIJEOIHIPOLL 10 SUOIJIPPE OU 919M 318y}
lI2YONIN 103031IQ epuabe ay) anoidde 0} Uonow pue epuabe ay) pamaiAal 93JILILLIOD BY | epuaby Jo jeaouddy g
'L wooy Ajquisssy Ul Nd 90:Z1 je
[IBYSUA 103031 lapJo 0} Bupesl ay) pajje |[BYI Jojoeiq 1BpIQ 01 |leD |
a|qisucdsay SUOIEPUIUWILLOIDY
(s)uosiag juonay dn-mojjo4 uoissnasi( aido].

‘elang epljed UsAing pubu| ‘seineq uoseys ‘sulyoly yiegalsyy ‘sousime] BYsQO ‘puowelq Aie
‘9]|eas] |ages| ‘JpJeH aawny ‘sioAW Aouen ‘Dismosiydiy sy ‘ddo Ayiey ‘J9||IN Ausys ‘josuon

"0pJEJUOD "I PUE UBLWLIOAA NOOS "I :JUSSAY SIIQLUDI

"ZMSH USLIBY| pue UBWS[O)) BIUOS

N ‘ddo] Y Aujey ‘einwnyQ eusmoy ‘Bmel esr
uonoajuj pue Ayend 11D ‘esueldwo) Aloyeinbay

Jo} J0yo8uIQg ‘uosiesid lwer ‘souelidwog pue Aiojeinbay Joy Joaulq IS ‘YBneueaes erleyy ‘[#suno) jessusn ‘J00y Apor :juasaid sioyQO

1920 soueldwo) Ja1yD ‘Meys-preusag sjlisyg pue da “ex3 /009 ‘Aejuod endey ‘039 ‘uipeIq 9A9)S :JuBsaid Sioquisly BuljoA-uopn

BN 8us9 i@ pue ‘uosuyor sawep "ig ‘sseld) suuy ybie Jopaulq ‘ousobeq wip 10308l ‘(YD) (JoYdHIN BINET JOJ0BI] Judsald SIoqLID

2102 ‘2l Atenuep

sajnuly uoissoag uadp

Bunesyy seniwwWo) siieyy JeUOISS8jOId

J8juag [estpsiy ANo-1iL

L4dvdd




L1110 ssnuip Ovd

BlI9NS) BIOL)Ed

‘'slaquusw aapiwwo?) ay Aq
pajou suoi}oa1109 s)eldoidde ay)
yum jenoisdde pieog 1o} plemio)
Buinows ssioijod ay} anoidde

0} UooW 3y} papuoIas ssels)
Joyoalq pue paaouwl ounpsobeq
101081 “panoidde ajom
sainpasold pue saioljod sadIAIBS

ale) jJuaned syl :NOILOVY

‘uolnepas

alelepows saiinbal sAemje 1sowje ainpaosoid
uoisianolpie) se Aoijod siy} o) pappe aq
pjnoys juauodwod asusIael uonepas ay |

‘lIem se Aoljod siy} ul paisnod

aie sjuspms | O pue | d auj jey} pajedipul
ounsobe(q 1010811 Ag apew uoneoyued \y

*Ao1j0d sIy} UO UOISSNOSIP OU SEM 818y |
"Alddns sixAd @y} ui pajeoo) ale syun

ay} ut spuijds ayj Jey; ‘uonsanb sounsobeq
1o10a11q Aq patjdu se ‘pajou sem j|

®AI}09|9] ‘uolsianolpie)d

Aotjod
sealy ale) Juaned ui
sjuapnis yyesH pailly ‘¢

uonesiddy
juiidg uononpqy g

alnpasold ids
Jspnoys uononpqy |
:saiNpPa20id
pue sa191|0d alie) Jusned

SaInpadold pue saiijod
J0 jenouddy sjqissod
pue uoneispisuon ‘e

ssouisng MoN G

‘Bunssw s yyuow snoirsid sy ui
Juasaud jJou sem ays aouis Buioa
wioyy pauiejsqe sseic) 10joaliq
'910Z J2q0100 Woyy sajnuiw ay)
aAoidde o0} uoijow ayy papuodss
B "1a pue paaow ounsobe(]

‘Bunosw
910¢ ‘€l 1990100 wWouy sanuIL 8y} snoidde

'910¢ 1990100

ZJoH uauey Jojoaiq "pauniel senuipy 0} Uoljow e 10} pajjed |[Bysy 1030a1Iq JO sanuIW Jo uonesyney
ajqisuodsay suonjepuswiwosay
(s)uosieyd juonoy dn-mojjo4 uoissnasiqg

oidoy




€

L1Z110 seinuiiy Dvd

Aq payoen Buieq ale ules| 0) pasu sjuapn)s
Buisinu sy} 1eu} SIS JO ISIO8YD By |

Ao1j0d sIy) uo UOISSNOSIP OU Sem a1y |

‘Aoljod siyy

0] apeuwl osje a1am sabueyo jeuo)pa Joulp

"JIUN 8y} Ul UOKEI|IDU0D3I pue uoljel)siuilupe
Bnip J1ay) op Aay} aouis palopisuoo

s dHYV ey} Jun Ajuo ay) s NSO "pabueyo

©q pinoys IS)JOM yleaH pailly wus} ay L

“ISN Joj pasn Buiaq s
ale syojge ] ‘sedInes pasedun Buuesy 1o}
padxa ue Ul jjes spun ay) Jey) pauLed Sem )

‘lendsoy

ay} u1 Ayoyes yuaned Buunsse jo asodind
ay} Joj Jiys ayj )noybnoiy) papasu se

pue Yiys B 95U0 SUOP Sie JUSWSSOSSE S||e)
8y “Jepuny sesn juswpeds(q Aousbiawg
8y} 9jiym sjuanedut Joy wa)sAs Bulioos

%S [je} @p0D 9SIO|N dY) sasn jepdsoy ay |

"SUOISE200

alel uo 00} )1 op sueldisAyd oinau swos

Inq sjsibojoissyiseue Aq suop Ajuewnd si
ainpaooid siy| -elseyjsaue jou ‘eisobjeue
leanpide Aes pjnoys y ‘uoisnjul Y304 8yl uQ

"sjusijed
Aneay Joy siepusixe yum paddinbs sie spaq
[eydsoy Jeinbai sy} Jey) passnosip sem j

sealy aie) juaned
ui syuapnyg BuisINN L L

Aoljod suonneosaid
oswadonnaN 0L

Aolj0d uoneljouosay
UONBDIPDBN "6

$S80IAI9S Uole|suel |
pue uopnejoidiaju] g

9INpadold |00 81098
pue a1nNpadoid ysiy jle4 /2

aInpaooid
Jusijed BulogeT-uoN
8} ut uoisnjuj IsjaLyeD
[eosyjenuy Jo jemnpidg -9

ainpadoid

aulyoep (INdD) uonop
®>_wmmn_ w:o:EEoO Y

djqisuodsay
(s)uosisag

SUOREPUBWILLOIBY
Juoyoy dn-mojjo

uoissnasiqg

osidoj




L1210 seInUIN Ovd

elans enued

elsng eoued

‘lenoidde pieog

10} psemuoy Buinow saioljod ay)
anoidde 03 uoljow sy} papuooss
uosuyof "1 pue parowl
oulysobe( Joyoanq ‘panoidde
sem Aojjod 4O3 sIyL :NOILOV

‘lenoidde pieog 10§ pJemioy
Buinow seld1j0d ay) anoidde
0} UOoljoW 8y} poPUOISs sSelo)
Jo)oaliq pue parow ounsobe(q
Jopaunq ‘panoidde sem Aoijod
SAjelSIUIWLIPY SIY| INOILOV

‘leydsoy ayy

sjy Joysesip e aseo uj uonejndod siy) Jo a1eo
puE UONeNJBAS 8y} S]BUIPIOOD [IM JLIBYS
“Hun ay} ui papiwpe sjusped NDd ayy

Jo} uejd e asiAep 01 YOO Yum paiom pey
ay ey} peppe os|e UIA8)] ‘sinoy gg J0j Ise|
M Jey) swuoy Jaded ybnous sey Ayjioe} sy}
‘umop Inys s1olndwiod ayy §| ‘|jeudsoy ay}

ul suonenyis Aouabiaws 10} auoyd ajljjeres

e sey |eydsoy ay} 1ey} pauodal uinayj

‘Aoljod sy} uo uoISSNOSIp OU SeM a1y |

‘Jeyidsoy ayj Jo spun ay} |je uo ajgejieAe ale
sjuabe Buiuayoiy) snoLeA Jey} pajou Sem j|

"unb s|dejs onewoine ay) Buigsosep ui o,
JO pes)sul pssn aq pinoys szijin, pIom ay |

"uoljenuaIsyIp JsIses 1o} pjog

SON 3y} aew 0} uonsebbns e sem aiay)
18117 SIIBIS SJUSPNIS NY @) Joj Leyd sy)
U| "Sa)Is [eoluljo 8y} uey) Jayjel [00Yyos ay)

uejd
suofesadp Aousblewg -

(d03) aunposouy
suonetadQ Asuabiswg
ayivadg pun

|eLslejpl aAneIodsq |

:S9NPa20id
pue S9191]10d SARRNSILIWIPY

Aoijod elbedsA

jeabulieydoip

UHM sjuaied 1oj

SUOIeIDPISUOY) UORNN
pue poo4 ‘Buimojiems ¢

Buiideis unis jeaibing gy

Aotjod

a]qisuodsay
(s)uosied

SUOePUBULIO0IBY
juoyoy dn-mojjo4

uoissnasiq

oido |




G

12110 SSINUIN Jvd

elieno epued

BlaNg eled

‘lencidde pieog

Jo} psemuoy Buinow saidljod ayy
anoidde 0] uonow ayj pepuodas
SSeI) 10}08lI(] pue pasow
390]|eyos Jojalq ‘perocsdde
alom sainpaooid pue saoljod
[0JUOD uoid3jU| BY ] :NOILOVY

‘lenocidde pieog

1o} pyemuoy Buinow saioljod ayy
anoidde o} uoijow sy} papuooss
uosuyor "1 pue paaow
ounsobe( Joyauq ‘peroidde
a1am sainpsooid pue saioljod

Buussuibuz 8yl :NOILOV

3y} JO aWos Yum Jeljiurejun ae sisuonoeld
Auew pue pauljosp sey sessau|l asay}

Jo Auew Jo souapioul sy} aouis sbus|jeys
e 80€} S1auonijoeld ‘g3 8y} 0} Juasaid
Aoy} sk so|seall 10 19AS) 19]4eds Se Yyons
SoseasIp alel U palajuad uoissnosIip ay |

‘ue|d uolIssIWwWo))
Julor 8y} j@aw o0y dn pauj) ase ssljod
[0AUOD UOROSIU| S} JO |[B Jey} psjou sem )

‘leydsoy ay} Ul SaAjeA
ay} jje yoes o} welsAs pazusindwod e sey
[exdsoy aup jey) jeuy paurejdxs Ajauq suyo

"sa1oljod 9S8} UO UOISSNISIP ON

suonnesald
paseg-uolssiwsuel |

pue piepuelg ‘¢

ue|d |onuon
sisojnolegn pue saseasi(
a|gissIwisuRl | |0SoIdY |

jonuo9 UoKIBPU|

010 sisenbay 19pI0 SHOM '8

€00¢
ue|d Juswabeuepy Aujin

~

900¢ @oueuajuiep
wawdinb3 poinpayos ‘g9

LLoc
ainpsoold Buiseyoing g

600¢
suonen|ead aseyoind-aid v

,00¢ uonoadsu)| pue
Aroyuenu) Juswdinbg man

™

€002

seo) |eolpaj Jo uonoadsu|
pue asueuajuiep ‘7
800¢ Jlleday juswdinbg -

Bunesuibug

a|qisuodsoy
(s)uosieg

suonepusawWosey
juonoy dn-mojjo4

uoissnasig

oido




12110 senuliy Ovd

eliang epued

elansg) eplyed

‘fenosdde

pJeog 10} piemuo} Buinow
sajoijod ay} anoidde 0} uoiow
ay} pepuooas sselw) J0joalid

pue paaow oulsobe( Joyoa8liqg
‘panoidde alam sainpaosold

pue sapijod NDIN SYL :NOILOV

‘lenoidde pieog 1o} piemioy
anouwi 0} panoidde pue panow
sem Aoljod Jels |edipay siy)
pue papuodas el "Iq ‘perow
oupsobe( 10303.1Q :NOILOV

"Aoljod siy) uo uoissnas|p ou sem alay |

"Ao1jod siy) UO UOISSNISIP OU Sem a1ay |

‘J9)sesip ey} Jo swi 8y}

1e Ajlunwiwiod ayj Jo spasu ay} o} buipiodoe
uedisAyd ay; ubisse |jim JapuewWILWLIO)
apiou] sy -ueisAyd e jenuspalo o) sAep
¢ 0} dn uswyedaq Yeis |edlpajy ay} axel
pINO2 )i Jey} pauonuaw Ausyg 1sjsesip e

JO JUSAS 8] ul s1auonioeld ay) Jo suonouny
3} U0 UOISSNISIP jJolIq B SeM alay |

‘JoA uanIb sjinsas ou aiam alay) ybnoyye
HJao o} biesss 1no Juas pue papodas alem
Sased eyl7 Jo 9|dnod e Jey) pauonusw esi

‘lendsoy sy} 104 ainseaw

Areuonnesaid se s)o8yo wopuel aney

0] pasu sajdwes Jie Jey} uonsabbns e sem
alay] -sisojjsuolba] 1o} Ajjenuue wsisAs
1onp Jie )s9) [ejdsoy oy} ul s19aulbug

"$$9001d JuSLISSaSSE By} Ul BY)

ul ple 0} s80.nos Jo A)aueA e woly sainjoid
0] $S800E 9ABY Je]s Jey) palnsseas sem
S3IILIOD BY) ‘seysel apn[oul 19N} }ajIeds
pue sajseauwl 9oulg ‘swojdwAs pue subis

wn
[ejeuLiod 0} uoleYNSUo) °Z

1o uoisnyu|
pue BuuapiO ‘(swosiguiy)
awosodi] g-upuajoydwy |
NOIN

wwmm_;_._n_ laisesiq |
Hels [es1pajy

SNIA BYIZ P

SSauj|| suloqisiepn €

ajqisuodsayy
(s)uosiuayg

suojjepuswiuosay
juonoy dn-mojjo4

uoissnoasiqg

asidoj




L

L1210 S8iuIN Ovd

eliong eoled

elang enujed

‘leacidde preog

Jo} pJemioy Buinows seidljod ay)
anoisdde 0} uoljow 8y} pepuooss
el "1Q pue paarow oufsobeq
Joyaunqg ‘panroidde alem
s}sanbal Alejnuiiol ay| :NOILOY

‘lenoidde pieog 10} piemio
aAowW 0} panosdde pue panow
sem Aojjod yelg jesipsiy siyl pue
Papu0oas ssels) 10)0al1 ‘parow
oulisobeq 1081 :NOILOV

apinoid [|ImM UOIEDIPSLU SIY) JO UORIPPE B4 |

"mou 1ybu )1 Bunuawajdun
1snl s1 Aoeweyd jendsoy ay} pue obe
syiuow g-z paddols sem uonedipaw siy |

"MOU JeaA

e 10} 1ayJew ay) ul usag jou sey bBnup siy|
‘lossIngly

jelo ay) Buisn dojs |m jeudsoy ay |

"MOU Jeah
e Joj suop Buiaq s| )i se poob si Aoijod siy |

"S90IAI9G S, UdIpliy)
pue S,USWOAA 8Y) Ul pasn s elleuIWET] 8y |

“SiY} ol

}00] ||IM S8IAB( UOJBYS "Buop 8( 0} spasu
|esnpids sy} uaym Bugsisse jo sseo0.1d

3Y} Yum Jeijiie] Jou a1e SNy SWwos jey)
pauonuaw uosuyor "iq :ainpadoid jeinpids
9Y} UO UONESIBAUOD JoLIq B SEM a1ay |

(19z1j019Y |IpEIO)
bow g joJaj0Wio e
uolsuadsns
Bw pp9/Bw
002 9|0zexoxyng
JupAwoIyAig e
sio|qel |joLeInqgly e
‘suonajeq
suoysiaq /suonippy
w9y aur Arejnwio4 |
s)sonbeay Asejnuiio

uonoRNXJ wnnoep ‘G

soljiqisuodsay
abueyy Yyys v

sainpaosold
Joj sseo01d Bulnpayog ‘¢

eueuiwe] ‘g

Juswebeuepy
feuldg |einpidy )
S9OIAING
UIOGMBN pue S, UdWOAA

ojqisuodsay
(s)uosisg

suonepuswWIWody
juonoy dn-mojjo4

uolssnasiqg

oidoj




Z1Z110 ssinuiy Ovd

oYU Joyoalig 'Wd S1:2 Je pawnolpe buaaiy juswuinolpy "1}
S91WIWOD By}
[YoNW 1010811 "SJUSWIWIOD ON |  JO SISQUISKY W01} SJUBWIWIOD "0
uoIssos
pasol) ul usye] uonoy Auy
[IBYDYIN J0308lIQ ‘ud)e} suoljoe ou sPM a8y | Jo uosiadiiey) ay) Jo spoday ‘g
‘'Nd OL°¢
lIRYONIN J030811Qg Je uoissag uadQ 0} uinjals edRIWIWO) By | uoisseg usdQ oy uin@y g
‘Nd 00:1 }e uoissas pasojo
ojui o6 0} paaoidde Ajsnowiueun
SEM }JI pue papuooas e "UOISSaG Paso|D) O
IIPYONW Jojoaiqg 13 ‘penow ounsobe(] 10308l 0b 0} uoijow e o} payse Jlayoup 1010811 uoISsag peso|) /
[IPYSUN J0308IIQ ‘usye} uooe ON :NOILJV | "Yjuowl SiLi JOj POMBIASI S19M SIOBIUOD ON

spenuo) feoiul) ‘9

1eak
e Jo} sBuines 000'09% & yum jeudsoy ayy

Asenwiio o) uoissiwpy -onuez

ajqisuodsay
(s)uosiod

suoljepusawWcIay
juonoy dn-moj|o4

uoissnasiq

oaido]

10



3
e

PROFESSIONAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE

February 9", 2017
CONTACT: Sharon Schultz, CNE

Policies and Procedures

Reason |

Recommendations

Patient Care Services Policies & Procedures

1. Child Passenger Restraint System Education
Policy

practice change

2. Consent for Operative or Other Procedures

practice change

3. Diabetes Education Procedure

3 year review,
practice change

4. In Custody Patients Policy

3 year review,
practice change

5. Knee Immobilizer Application and Range of
Motion (ROM) Brace Procedure

3 year review,
practice change

6. Swallow Screening in the Adult Patient
Procedure

3 year review,
practice change

Administrative Policies & Procedures

1. Administrator On Call - 281

3 year review,
practice change

2. Lost and Found Articles - 202

3 year review,
practice change

Department Specific

Infection Control

1. Transmissible Spongiform Encephalopathies
(TSE)

3 year review,
practice change

Surgical Services

1. Block Time Policy

3 year review,
practice change

2. Bumping Surgery Procedures Policy

3 year review,
practice change

3. Disaster and Emergency Preparedness Policy

3 year review,
practice change

OR Committee Policy

3 year review,
practice change

Pre-Operative Requirements Policy

DELETE

6: Safe Medical Device Act - Tracking and
Reporting Policy

DELETE

7. Scheduling Surgical Procedures Policy

3 year review,
practice change

8. Scope of Service for Surgical Services Policy

3 year review,
practice change

Telemetry

1. Assignments

3 year review,
practice change

Women & Newborn Services

1. Hydralazine Hydrochloride

DELETE

2. Neonatal Team Attendance at a Delivery

3 year review,
practice change

3. Standards of Care: Newborn

3 year review,
practice change

4, Standards of Care: Postpartum

3 year review,

practice change

11

Page 1




Tri-City Medical Centei

Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICES
ISSUE DATE: 02/2012 SUBJECT: Child Passenger Restraint System
Education
REVISION DATE: POLICY NUMBER: V.E
Department Approval: 08/16
Clinical Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 05/4509/16
Nurse Executive Council Approval: 05/1509/16
Department of Pediatrics Approval 02/1611/16
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approvai: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 02/1601/17
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 04/16
Board of Directors Approval: 04/16
A PURPOSE:

1. The purpose is to provide a method for disseminating information to parents/authorized
caregivers of infants and young children regarding child passenger safety seats.

2. Prior to the discharge of any child under age 8, regardless of weight, or less than 4 feet 9 inches
(regardless of age), the parents or authorized caregiver to whom the child is being released, will
be given information regarding current child passenger restraint system. Included are the risks
associated with their non-use or misuse. A list of programs offering rental and no or low-cost
purchase will be available.

B. POLICY:

1.

Before an infant or young child is discharged, the parents or authorized caregiver to whom the
child is being released, will be verbally informed of the need to have an age-appropriate child
passenger safety seat, about Car Seat Safety and the importance that all children under 13 years
of age ride in the back seat and be properly buckled when being transported.

This information shall be provided to all parents of children receiving care in the
Emergency Department and in Women and Newborn Services.

a.

Infants must be properly buckled in a rear-facing car seat in the back until they are

at least 4-year-old-AND-20-pounds- 2 years old (except for those that are 40
inches tall or 40 pounds or more).

0 % anc -
J Ceriao—To

If a child is too large for a safety seat, the AAP recommends children who are 4

feet 9 inches tall or shorter ride in a belt positioning booster seat, regardless of

age.

Children age 8 or older, or who are over 4 feet 9 inches or taller mayean use a

lapishoulder belt if:

1) The child can sit all the way back/ hips against the seat.

2) The child’s knees bend comfortably at the edge of the seat.

3) The shoulder strap should cross the center of the chestovertheshoulder
botpeon-thenoclandthe s,

4) The belt fits low and flat on the hips.

435)  Child remains seated.

§)6) If the answer is no to any of the following, then a booster is still required
according to the California Law.

12



Patient Care Services
Child Passenger Restraint System Education
Page 2 of 2

b. It is illegal for a person to smoke a pipe, cigar or cigaretie in a motor vehicle in which there
is a minor [Health and Safety Code Section 118948].

C. A parent, legal guardian, or other person responsible for a child who is 6 years of age or
younger may not leave that child inside a motor vehicle without being subject to the
supervision of a person who is 12 years of age or older, under either of the following
circumstances.

i. Where there are conditions that present a significant risk to the child’s health or
safety.

ii. When the vehicle’s engine is running or the keys are in the ignition, or both.

b. Other regulatory recommendations:

i. Toddlers should remain rear-facmg untll they reach 2 years of age er-until-they

h-the-upperweight-and-height-i o-car-seat except if they are 40
mches tall or welgh 40 pounds or more. Always. follow the manufacturer's -
instructions for proper use and fit.

. Do not buy a used car seat if you do not know if it has been in a crash.

ii. Do not buy a car seat that is older than 6 years or has been in a crash.

iv. Children should ride in the back seat until they are 13 years old.

V. Never allow your child to place the shoulder belt behind his/her back or under the
arm.

vi. Never seat a child in front of an airbag.

vii. Never leave your child alone in or around cars.

2. Literature available in both English and Spanish will be provided outlining current state laws
regarding this-issue;-proper use of safety seats, and risk of death/injury associated with non-use
or misuse, including air-bag issues.

3. Prior to the discharge of the child, parent/conservator or guardian shall provide a signature that
this information was reviewed and discussed.

a. Person receiving information outlining current law requiring child passenger restraint
system, will sign the “release of a child under 8 years of age” form. The original will be
kept in the medical record and a copy will be given to the person to whom the child is
released.

4, Hospitals are required only to provide and discuss information concerning child passenger
restraint system laws.

a. Hospitals are not required to, and should not attempt to prevent a parent (or other
authorized person) from transporting a child in a vehicle which does not have a child
passenger system.

b. Hospitals also should not instruct parents regarding how to install a car seat or help
parents install a car seat, for liability reasons. A parent with questions about appropriate
car seat installation should be referred to a local police or fire station, a local CHP office or
loan program. Parents may also call (866) SEAT-CHECK or visit www.seatcheck.org to
locate free car seat inspection facilities.

5. Facilities that provide the required information to the person to whom the child is released cannot
be held legally responsible for the failure of that person to use a child passenger restraint system.

C. REFERENCES:
1. California Highway Patrol www.chp.ca.gov, retrieved January 2017
2. Following California Laws Will Keep You Child Safe in the Car,
https://www.cdph.ca.gov/Healthinfo/injviosaf/Documents/ParentBrochure-English.pdf,

retrieved January 2017

3. www.Kohiscarsafety.org.

4. National Highway Traffic Safety Administration www.safercar.gov/Air+Bags, retrieved
January 2017

4:5.  Pacific Safety Council, 9880 Via Pasar, Suite F, San Diego, CA 92126, Phone: 858-621-2313 or
http://www.safetycouncilonline.com/fuli/url/

13



@Tri»City Health Care District
Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICES

ISSUE DATE: 11/94 SUBJECT: Consent for Operative or Other
Procedures

REVISION DATE: 9/95; 11/96; 10/97; 7/99; 6/03; 1/06; POLICY NUMBER: 8610-359
2/06; 2/07; 04/09; 12/10; 01/16

Clinical Policies and Procedures Committee Approval: 08/1508/16
Nurse Executive Committee Approval: 02/1509/16
Operating Room Committee Approval: 11/16
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval: 14/4801/17
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 01/16
Board of Directors Approval: 01/16

A. PURPOSE:
1. To comply with legal and regulatory standards by defining Tri-City Healthcare District's (TCHD)

process to obtain a valid consent prior to diagnostic or therapeutic invasive procedures.

B. DEFINITIONS

1. Adulf: An individual who has reached the age of 18 years, or a minor who has entered a valid
marriage (whether or not the marriage was terminated by dissolution), who is on active duty with
the armed forces of the United States of America, or who has been declared emancipated
pursuant to Family Code section 7122et.seq. (Family Code, section 7002), or self sufficient minor
(15 years or older, living apart from his/her parents, and manages his/her own financial affairs)
pursuant to Family Code section 6922.

2. Consent Form: A document that verifies a patient has been informed of a pending diagnostic or
therapeutic invasive procedure; understands the information and has given consent to the
physician/Allied Health Professional.

3. Informed Consent:

a. Voluntary consent given by a person or a responsible proxy (e.g., legal guardian,
responsible party) for invasive diagnostic or therapeutic procedure after being informed of:
i. The purpose, methods, benefits, and risks.
i. The likelihood of the patient achieving their goals
iii. Any potential problems that might occur during recuperation

iv. Reasonable alternatives to the patient’s proposed care, treatment, and services
V. Side effects related to alternatives
vi. Risks related to not receiving the proposed care, treatment or services

b. The essential criteria of informed consent are

i. The subject has both knowledge and comprehension.

i, Consent is freely given without duress or undue influence.

iii. The right of withdrawal at any time is clearly communicated to the subject and
documented by the physician/Allied Health Professional in the patient's medical
record.

C. Informed consent should be obtained prior to the consent form being signed unless
there is an emergency event.

4, Emergency: A situation in which immediate services are required for alleviation of severe pain, or
immediate diagnosis and treatment of unforeseeable medical conditions are required to prevent
serious disability or death.

5. Minor: For minors see Patient Care Services (PCS) Policy: Consent for Minors

14



Patient Care Services
Consent for Operative or Other Procedures

Page 2 of 6

6.

Procedures/Treatments Requiring Informed Consent/Consent forms:  Informed consent and a

consent form are required for any procedure or medical treatment that is considered complex and

involve risks that are not commonly understood. The final determination of the “complexity” of the

procedure/treatment is the responsibility of the physician/Allied Health Professional, in

accordance with the criteria listed below:

a. Any procedure that requires pre-medication for sedation/anaigesia

b. Any invasive procedure which involve incision, percutaneous puncture or insertion, and
requires the services of the Endoscopy Lab, Operating Room, Cardiac Catheterization
Laboratory, Interventional Radiology

C. As required by law including but not limited to:
1) Blood Transfusion
2) Human Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV) Blood Tests
3) Investigational drugs or devices
4) Human Experimentation
5) Treatment for breast or prostate cancer
6) Use of psychotropic medications
7) Electroconvulsive Therapy

C. PROCEDURE:

1.

A signed consent form is required prior to invasive diagnostic or therapeutic procedures.

a. After the physician/Allied Health Professional has obtained the patient’s informed consent,
a consent form for a procedure must be signed by the patient.

b. The completed consent for Operative or Other Procedures shall be placed on the patient’s
chart under Operative/Consents.

C. A copy of the signed form shall be given to the patient/legal representative.

Consent must include:

a. Nature of the proposed care, treatment, services, medications, interventions, or
procedures

b. Potential benefits, risks, or side effects of the procedure including potential problems that

may occur during recuperation

C. Likelihood of achieving care, treatment, and/or service goals

d. Reasonable alternatives

e. Relevant risks, benefits, and side effects related to alternatives, including the possible
results of not receiving care, treatment, or service

f. Limitations of the confidentiality of information learned from or about the patient as
indicated

g. Any independent medical research or significant economic interests the physician/Allied
Health Professional may have related to the performance of the proposed
operation/procedure

The consent form must be signed prior to the administration of narcotics or mind-altering drugs.

a. The physician/Allied Health Professional must determine if the patient is competent to sign

the consent or if the procedure must be delayed if the consent is not obtained before the
administration of narcotics or mind-altering medications.
i. The decision to continue with the procedure must be documented by the physician
in the medical record.
If, in the opinion of the physician/Allied Health Professional, the patient is permanently or
temporarily incapable of giving consent, consent is obtained from one of the following, in the
order listed
a. Surrogate decision maker who has been verbally designated to the physician/Allied Health
Professional who has undertaken primary responsibility for the patient. This verbal
designation must be documented in the medical record and is valid:
i. During the duration of the hospitalization
. The course of iliness
iii. 60 days, whichever is shorter
b. Agent identified in an advanced directive

15



Patient Care Services
Consent for Operative or Other Procedures

Page 3 0f6

C. When both an agent and surrogate are appointed by the patient, the surrogate takes
precedence over the agent for the limited duration previously stated.

d. Conservator, who has been authorized by the court to make health care decisions or
guardian;

e. Court appointed surrogate decision maker or court order

f Closest available relative when appropriate to rely on the consent of this person (the

person has capacity, trustworthy motives, likely that patient would consent if able, no
objections from close relatives). The physician/Allied Health Professional should
determine appropriateness for procedures requiring informed consent.

The consent form must include:

a. Full terminology of the procedure (in lay terms) without the use of abbreviations.

i. The terminology is obtained from the physician/Allied Health Professional order.
i. Right or Left shall be indicated when appropriate

b. Document the date and time when the patient signs the consent form.

C. The name of the surgeon/physician/Allied Health Professional performing the procedure
and the name of the attending physician/Allied Health Professional must be listed on the
consent (first and last names).

i. If there is the possibility that some in the medical group may cover for the
procedural physician/Allied Health Professional (i.e., call, vacation, availability,
etc.) list all the primary physician/Allied Health Professmnal that may perform

procedure on the consent form—and—the—name-ef—thaqqeéeal—g;eup-eaﬂpnmapy

ii. When two phy5|CIan/AIl|ed Health Professionals are Ilsted on the orders as
performing the procedure together, both surgeons are listed on the consent.
d. When two physician/Allied Health Professionals are performing two different procedures
on the same patient, a separate consent form shall be completed for each physician/Allied
Health Professional and corresponding procedure

e. Blank lines are not permissible on the consent form.

The consent form may not be altered once the patient has signed.

a. If the physician/Allied Health Professional alters the order, a new consent must be
obtained.

b. In the case of a clerical error on the consent, the consent must be rewritten. The patient

must sign the revised consent.
The consent form must be signed by a competent adult patient and witnessed by a hospital

employee.
a. A mark may be placed on the consent if the patient is physically unable to sign his/her
name.

i. Two hospital employees shall sign as witnesses to the mark.

b. Elective surgery/procedures shall be delayed/cancelled if the patients voluntarily indicates
doubt or confusion about the indicated procedure, until the physician/Allied Health
Professional obtaining informed consent has an additional opportunity to talk to the patient

If the patient or patient representative cannot communicate with the physician/Allied Health

Professional or hospital representative due to a language barrier, interpretive services shall be

obtained

a. Staff and/or family members shall only be used as interpreters in emergent situations until
a medical interpreter is contacted.

i. For the complete policy governing use of interpreters, please refer to Patient Care
Services Policy: Communication with the Sensory Impaired and/or Persons with
Language Barriers.

b. If an interpreter is used, documentation shall include the name of the interpreter, the
person’s position (when appropriate) and that person’s relationship to the patient.
C. When telephone/video translation service is used, the following must be documented on

the consent form:
i. The name of the patient/legal representative receiving translation.
i. The patient’s/legal representative’s primary language.

16



Patient Care Services
Consent for Operative or Other Procedures

Page 4 of 6

10.

iii. The medical interpreter identification/number.

d. If the consent form is not available in the patient’s or patient representative’s primary
language, the interpreter shall verbally translate the form and ask the patient to sign the
English form if the patient or the patient’s representative agrees to the terms and
conditions.

State and Federal regulation mandate special informed consent requirements for reproductive

sterilization which is primarily for the purpose of rendering the person incapable of reproducing

(“elective sterilization”), and elective sterilization may be performed only when the following

conditions are met:

a. Informed consent has been obtained from the patient

b. The patient shall be able to understand the content and nature of the informed consent
process

C. The patient shall not be in a condition or mental state in which judgment is significantly
altered

d. The patient shall not be in labor, or less than 24 hours postpartum or post abortion

The patient shall not be seeking to obtain or obtaining an abortion

Medi-Cal or Federally funded patient shall have the following additional requirements

i. Patient shall be 21 years of age or older

ii. Patient shall not have been declared mentally incompetent by a court of competent
jurisdiction, unless a limited conservator has been appointed and specific criteria
have been met

ii. The patient shall not be involuntarily confined or detained in a correctional or
rehabilitative facility, or confined, under a voluntary commitment in a facility for the
care and treatment of mental iliness

g. The sterilization consent has been signed by the necessary parties and is available on the
chart prior to procedure

h. The required waiting period has been satisfied
i. Thirty (30) days, but not more than 180 days shall pass after the appropriate

sterilization consent was signed by patient or conservator
ii. Elective sterilization shall be performed less than 30 days after the patient has
signed the consent form only in the following circumstances:

o

1) Private (pay status) patient voluntarily requests in writing that the 30-day
waiting period be waived to no less than 72 hours
2) The elective sterilization is performed at the time of emergency abdominal

surgery or at the time of a premature delivery, AND the physician/Allied
Health Professional certifies that informed consent was given and the
sterilization consent form was signed at least 30 days before the intended
date of sterilization and that at least 72 hours have actually passed since
consent was given and the form was signed, and the physician/Allied
Health Professionals describes the nature of the emergency, or indicates
the prior expected delivery date on the sterilization consent form.

State regulations mandate special requirements for physician/Allied Health Professionals

regarding informed consent for hysterectomies.

a. The Authorization for and Consent to Hysterectomy shall be used to document these
requirements.

i. The Hysterectomy Consent form is needed in addition to the Consent for
Operative or Other Procedures form.

b. These regulations outline specific requirements for physician/Allied Health Professionals that
must be documented in the medical record, including that the physician/Allied Health
Professional must obtain “verbal and written” consent prior to the performance of the
hysterectomy.

c. The informed consent procedure by the physician/Allied Health Professional, shall provide
that at least all of the following information is given to the patient verbally and in writing:

i. Advice that the individual is free to withhold or withdraw consent to the procedure
at any time before the hysterectomy without affecting the right to future care or

17



Patient Care Services
Consent for Operative or Other Procedures

Page 5 of 6

1.

12.

13.

treatment and without loss or withdrawal of any state or federally funded program
benefits to which the individual might be otherwise entitled.

ii. A description of the type or types of surgery and other procedures involved in the
proposed hysterectomy, and a description of any known available and appropriate
alternatives to the hysterectomy itself.

iii. Advice that the hysterectomy procedure is considered to be irreversible, and that
infertility will result if the patient is not already sterile or postmenopausal.

iv. A description of the discomforts and risks that may accompany or follow the
performance of the procedure.

V. A description of the benefits or advantages that may be expected as a resuit of the
hysterectomy.

vi. Approximate length of stay in the hospital.

vii. Approximate length of time for recovery.

viii. Financial cost to the patient of the physician/Allied Health Professional’s and

surgeon’s fees.

A signed consent form is in effect until the patient changes his/her mind, or the physician/Allied
Health Professional alters the nature of the procedure (in which case a new consent is required).
Consent for a medical emergency:

a.

In the case of a medical emergency where a procedure is immediately required and
necessary to prevent deterioration or aggravation of the patient’s condition, treatment may
proceed without the patient’s consent.
The physician/Allied Health Professional must document the determination of the medical
necessity in the medical record.
The physician/Allied Health Professional does not sign the consent on behalf of the
patient.
i. The unsigned consent is maintained in the medical record.
i TCHD personnel shall document on the consent “See progress notes dated
for physician/Allied Health Professional documentation of medical emergency
indicating need to proceed with procedure.”

Telephone/Facsimile/Email Consent

a.

Informed consent may be obtained by telephone, facsimile, or email when the person

having the legal capability to consent for the patient is not otherwise available.

i. TCHD staff must validate the person is authorized to give consent.

When a telephone is used, the responsible physician/Allied Health Professional must

provide the patient’s legal representative with the same information as would be

presented to the individual in person.

Two individuals (either two TCHD staff personnel or the physician/Allied Health

Professional and one TCHD staff member) must witness the consent conversation.

i. The patient’s legal representative must be informed the conversation is being
witnessed.

i. The person(s) witnessing the conversation must sign and date documentation of
the conversation on the Telephone Consent Form.

iii. The telephone consent, with the signature of the two witnesses, is placed in the
medical record.

Physician/Allied Health Professional instructions may be telegraphed or emailed to the

legal representative.

i. In cases of electronically transmitted consent, the following occurs:

1) Specific instructions regarding where the consent will be wired or emailed
shall be provided by the person who is legally able to consent for the
patient.

2) Written confirmation proceeding the procedure and documentation of the

patient’s name, secured to the cover sheet if applicable, are maintained in
the medical record.

In cases of facsimile consent:

i. Direct discussion with the legal representative giving consent must first occur.

18



Patient Care Services
Consent for Operative or Other Procedures
Page 6 of 6
ii. The legal representative may fax the consent after receiving full information

regarding the procedure.
iii. The facsimile document(s), along with the cover sheet, is placed in the medical
record.
1) Request the legal representative to send the original signed document to
TCHD. This document is filed in the patient’s medical record upon receipt.
14, Consent for an incompetent patient:
a. If a patient is incompetent or otherwise unable to give informed consent and does not
have a conservator or holder of a durable power of attorney for healthcare decisions, the
physician/Allied Health Professional may proceed by obtaining consent of the closest

available relative.
b. The physician/Allied Health Professional must document in the medical record that there

is no known conservator or durable power of attorney for healthcare and that the

procedure is necessary.
c. If there is no relative available, and if the procedure is not an emergency, the Director of

Risk Management is contacted to assist.

D. RELATED DOCUMENTS:

1. Patient Care Services Policy: Communication with the Sensory Impaired and/or Persons with
Language Barriers
2. Patient Care Services Policy: Consent for Minors

E. REFERENCES:
1. Comprehensive Accreditation Manual, (2015), The Joint Commission

2. Health & Safety Code §1690 — 1691
3. California Code of Regulations (CCR) Title XXIl §51305.6 & 70707.5
4.

California Hospital Association Consent Manual

19



%‘f} Tri-City Medical Center

Distribution: Patient Care Services

| | PROCEDURE:

DIABETES EDUCATION AND DISCHARGE PLANNING

Purpose:

To outline Nursing’s responsibility for providing survival skill diabetes self-management
education

Supportive Data:

American Diabetes Association (ADA), American Association of Diabetes Educators
(AADE) guidelines and The Joint Commission Certification Compliance/Standards.

Supplies

Diabetes Patient Education Booklets, selected medication education leaflets, blood
glucose meters with test strips.

A. DIABETES EDUCATION:

1.
| 2.

3.

9.
8-10.

it is not necessary to obtain an order for Diabetes Education from the physician.

All patients with diabetes should be assessed for diabetes self-management deficits deemed to
be survival skills by the Joint Commission’s education compliance standards.

This includes patients who are newly diagnosed or patients who have a history of diabetes
whether it is Type 1, Type 2, Gestational Diabetes, or pre-diabetes.

The required elements of education are all included in the Diabetes Patient Education Booklets.
The Tri-City Medical Center (TCMC) Type 1 Diabetes Booklet should be used for patients newly
and previously diagnosed. Patients admitted with diabetic ketoacidosis (DKA) will most likely,
though not always, fall into this category.

The TCMC Type 2 Diabetes Booklet should be used for patients newly and previously diagnosed
with Type 2 Diabetes, pre-diabetes, and Gestational Diabetes.

Every patient admitted to TCMC as an inpatient is assessed by a Registered Dietitian (RD).
Education on meal planning ismay be provided by the RD, depending on the circumstances of
admission to the hospital, e.g. DKA ata-minimum,-accerding-to: Tthe content in the Patient
Diabetes Education Booklets serves as the basis for meal planning education by the RDs.
This same content can-alse-be is used reinforced-by the Registered Nurse.

Each diabetic patient or at risk patient should have an A1c done on admission. If the A1c is not
done, obtain order from physrcran

ba. An Alc greater than 8% warrants a change in medication and/or better self-management.
The Interdisciplinary Plan of Care (IPOC) should include “Adult Diabetes Endocrine” from which
all education elements can be accessed for documentation.

AII educatlon is documented on the Educatlon All Toplcs Ad Hoc Form orin IV|ew

| B. TEACHING SUPPLIES:

1. Supplies should be obtained as soon after admission as possible so that there is enough time for
learning

2. The Diabetes Education Booklets contain all of the topics required for teaching in an
inpatient setting.

3. The Inpatient Diabetes Educator is available to all nursing staff for complex patient
education and management. Examples include:
a. Repeated hypoglycemic episodes
b Persistent hyperglycemia
c Patients with insulin pumps
d. Patients with frequent readmissions
e Patients with learning difficulties

Deparmert | (oICHy | NG, | Dates T | TS | el | RS | gt
Procedures Committes Committee Committee Committee

20




| Patient Care Services Prosedure-Manual

Diabetes Education Procedure

Page 2 of 2

4,

1.

The Diabetes Task Force is a multidisciplinary committee that generally meets
every other month. Diabetes care issues may be brought to this committee for
discussion and resolution.

4.C. DIABETES DISCHARGE PLANNING:

Prior to discharge, a diabetes care follow-up appointment is made with the provider who

cares for the patient’s diabetes.

a. The appointment is documented in the electronic health record (EHR) including the
provider, date and time.

i. If unable to schedule an appointment document reason in EHR.
Outpatient Diabetes Self-Management Education classes are encouraged. Registration
information is found in the Diabetes Education Booklets.

The A1c is shared with the patient and documented in EHR.

The Family Risk Assessment (found on the back cover of the Diabetes Education
Booklets) is provided to the patient with an explanation that siblings and children of the
patient assess their risk for diabetes.

Prescriptions for diabetes supplies should be written for patients as needed, especially
patients who are newly diagnosed with diabetes. These include:

a. Glucose meter, lancets, and strips

b. Glucagon emergency kit if patient is prone to severe hypoglycemia
C. Ketone test strips for patients admitted for dka

d. Syringes and/or pen needles

21



“%J) Ti-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

PATIENT CARE SERVICES POLICY MANUAL

ISSUE DATE: 4/97 SUBJECT: in-CustedyPatientsJustice Involved
Patients

REVISION DATE: 10/99, 6/03, 8/05, 8/07, 4/12 POLICY NUMBER: VIi.B.2

Department Approval: 11/16

Clinical Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 04/1212/16

Nurse Executive Council Approval: 10M4201/17

Medical Staff Department/Division Approval: n/a

Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval: n/a

Medical Executive Committee Approval: 014/4301/17

Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 02/13

Board of Directors Approval: 02/13

A PURPOSE

1. To establish guidelines for the responsibility of patients who are justice involved individualsin-
custody;priseners receiving medical care, and/or are admitted to Tri-City Healthcare
DistrictMedical-Centor (TCHDMC).

B. DEFINITIONS

1. Law Enforcement PersonnelCustedy-Officer: Any Federal, State, or Local Peace Officer or
Correctional ustedy-Officer or their contract agencies that has the responsibility for the
custody of justice involved individual.

2. Justice Involved Individual: Prisoner—a Any individual who is under lawful physical arrest and
in the custody of a Law Enforcement Officer Custody Officer and brought to Tri-City-Medical
CenterTCHD to receive medical care, evaluation, treatment, or admission.

C. POLICY

1. Law Enforcement personnel, in consultation with F+i-Cit-Medical-CenterTCHD personnel, are |
responsible for considering issues related to the use of restraint for non-clinical purposes;
imposition of disciplinary restrictions and the restriction of rights.

2. Law Enforcement shall be responsible for maintaining the security and the detention of any
justice involved individual prisener-seen or admitted for medical care of the duration of the
admission. The Fri-City-Medical-CenterTCHD Security Department shall be the contact liaison
between the custodialy agency and the Medical Center. Tri-City-Medical-CenterTCHD-Security
Department personnel shall not assume any custodial duties as they relate to justice involved
individualthe-prisoner.

3. The Admitting Physician is responsible for determining the justice involved
individualspriserers-plan of care while in the Medical Center, including the length of stay for
medical treatment, the discharge plan, and consulting with the law enforcement-custodial
agency in the continuing care and discharge plan.

4. Patient care shall be delivered to the justice involved individual priserer-as determined by the |
Clinical Staff, following the admitting Physician’s orders and hospital or departmental standards
of care, that also meets and respects security concerns and restrictions

5. Fri-City-Medical CenterTCHD recognizes the American Civil Liberties Union and will ensure that

justice involved individualspriseners-receive adequate medical care while admitted to

TCMETCHD.in-sustody-
22



Patient Care Services Procedure-Manual ’
Justice Involved Patientsin-Custody-RPatients \-B

Page 2 of 3
6.
7.
8.
9.
D.

1.

Registration Department Responsibilities:

a.

The Registration Department shall notify Security {via Private Branch Exchange
(PROGRESSIVE CAREPBX) when ar justice involved individual

is admitted to either the Emergency Department or the Medical Center with the following
information:

i. Patient Name

i. Location of-Rrisener- justice involved individual

ii. Law Enforcement Custedial-Agency responsible for patient

Security Department Personnel Responsibility:

a.

Securlty personnel shall:

i. Contact the Law Enforcement OfficerCustedial-Officer responsible for guarding
the justice involved individualpriscrer.

i Establish communications.

i Orient the Law Enforcement Custedial-Officer using the “EorensicProgressive
Care Service Training” form (attachment 1).

iv. Obtain Custodial Officer’s signature indicating they have read the “Forensnc
Services Training” form.

Security shall liaison with the Assistant Nurse Manager (ANM) or designee and the

Administrative Supervisor (AS) to verify that the proper measures are being used by the

agency responsible for the justice involved individual prisoner as it relates to the

safety, security, and welfare of all patients, visitors, and staff members.

Any situation that puts the safety, security, and welfare of any patient, visitor, or staff

member at risk shall be immediately reported to the Lead Security Officer on duty. The

Lead Security Officer shall inform the Security Supervisor and Risk/Legal Services.

Law Enforcement Officer Custodial-OfficerResponsibilities:

a.

Law Enforcement Gustedial-Officers shall maintain custodialuse-forensic-restraints on
the justice involved individual prisenrer at all times, unless the medical condition or
prescribed treatment indicates otherwise.

Should medical restraints or seclusion of a justice involved individual

for behavioral or medical issues become necessary, Tri-Gity-Medical-CenterTCHD
policies shall be followed.

Security Supervisor Responsibilities:

a.

If the Lead Security Officer informs the Security Supervisor of a safety issue, the
Security Supervisor shall contact the law enforcement agency custodial-agensy
involved in the incident to resolve the issue.

The Security Supervisor shall contact the Administrator of the Law Enforcement
agency custodial-agensy-responsible for the Law Enforcement OfficerCustedial-Officer
regarding any violation of this policy.

The Security Supervisor shall maintain a file regarding the involved Law Enforcement
Officer Gustodial-Officer-and incident.

RELATED DOCUMENTS:

Progressive Care Services Training

23



%‘3} Tri-City Miedical Center
Forensic Services Training
“Custody Officer Orientation”

Attachment4 |

1. Medical Evaluation and Treatment:
The primary concern for Fri-City-Medisal-GenterTCHD’s Clinical Staff is the proper treatment and care
of the justice involved individual prisererand the safety, security, and welfare of all Ppatients,
Mvisitors, and sStaff mMembers.

2. Custodial Eorensic-Restraints:
Law Enforcement Custedy-Officers are required to remain with the justice involved patient prisener
at all times while in the Medical Center. The justice involved patients prisorer-must remain in
custodial ferensic-restraints at all times and the Law Enforcement Custedy-Officer must have a key in
his/her possession.

3. Evacuation:
Medical Center personnel are familiar with the evacuation routes. In the event an evacuation becomes

necessary, the Law Enforcement Custedy-Officer must remain with the justice involved patients
prisenerat all times. TCMCGTCHDMedical-Center personnel shall direct you and the justice involved
patients prisener-out of the Medical Center.

4. Facility Orientation:
The Security Officer conducting this orientation shall show you where the restrooms, phones, and exits
are located. Smoking is not permitted inside the Medical Center and only permitted in designated areas
on the campus.

5. Cell Phones:
The use of personal cell phones shall follow FCMCTCHD policy as well as the Law Enforcement

Agency
Policy regarding use while on duty. Cell phones may not be used to photograph patients or any
Individual including self without permission from TCMCTCHD admistration.

65. Security Codes:
Internal and external disasters or security codes are communicated to Medical Center personnel by
overhead paging using the below listed codes. -lt is not necessary for the Custody Officer Law
Enforcement Officer to respond in any way to a code unless directed by a ANM or designee, Security,
or the Administrative Supervisor.

Code Blue:  Adult Arrest/Medical Emergency Code Adam: Infant Abduction

Code Pink:  Infant Arrest/Medical Emergency Code Gray:  Hostage Situation

Code Yellow: Radiation Disaster Code Orange: Internal/External Disaster
Code Green: Oxygen Emergency Code Red: Fire

Dr. Strong:  Violent Person Code Caleb: Severely il infant

Code OB STAT Team Mobilization Code Silver:  Active shooter situation

76. Phones:
To contact the operator in case of an emergency dial “66.” Dial “80” and then “911” to contact the local

police department in case of an emergency. Dial “80” for an outside fine for non-emergency calls.
Personal calls are not allowed. The custodial Law Enforcment Officer Custedy-Officer-is required to
call Security and notify them if the justice involved patientprisoner is moved transferred within the
Medical Center. To contact the operator, Administrative Supervisor, or Security, dial “0.”

87. Relief:
The custodial Law Enforcement Custedy-Officer's agency is responsible for providing relief for the
on-duty Officer. Medical Center staff, including Medical Center Security Officers, may not take custody
of any prisoner. The on-duty custodial Law Enforcement Gustedy-Officer must call the Security
Department and have an Officer dispatched to your location to orientate the relief custodial Law
Enforcement Gustody-Officer. Each custodial Law Enforcement Gustody-Officer shall be required to
sign a copy of the “ForensicProgressive Care Services Training” form.

98. Patient Confidentiality:
In the course of medical treatment for the prisoner, the custodial Law Enforcement Custody-Officer
may become aware of the justice involved patient’s priserers-personal history, medical history,
diagnosis, and treatment plan. This information is confidential and may not be shared with anyone

White Copy: Security DepartmentZFje Yellow Copy: Custody Officer




Patient Care Services Rrossdure-Manual
Justice Involved Patientsin-Custedy-Ratients\-B

Page 2 of 3
including the Law Enforcement Custody-Officer’s agency. Violations of the justice involved individual's

confidential information could result in legal action.

| certify that | have read and understand the above requirements and that | have received a copy of this
document for my records.

Signature Print Name Date

Agency Name Patient Name Room Number

25



(%ZJ Tﬂ{nty Medical Center Distribution: Patient Care Services

PROCEDURE:  KNEE IMMOBILIZER APPLICATION AND RANGE OF MOTION (ROM) BRACE

Purpose: To outline the nursing responsibilities in the application of knee immobilizer.
Supportive Data: Knee immobilizers provide support to prevent knee flexion. Requires a physician order.
Equipment: Knee immobilizer/universal knee splint; ROM brace.
A KNEE IMMOBLIZER:
1. Assess neurovascular status and skin integrity of patient pre and post application of splint and
ongoing. (ie. Mminimum every 4 hours or per physician orders.)
2. Place leg inside immobilizer with posterior fossa resting in posterior panel so that when the
immobilizer is secured, the patella is visible. It is not necessary for the patella strap to may
not fasten.

F—Clessanerorpanelovermedial-nanah

4:3. Run-Apply Velcro straps through metal loops ard-then-securesnugly, Velcre-straps-should-not
be-se-tight-as-toe- but not restricting venous flow.

58-4. Record neurovascular assessment, application of immobilizer/splint, and patient’s tolerance in
the medical record.

B. RANGE OF MOTION (ROM) BRACE:

1. Assess neurovascular status and skin integrity of patient pre and post application of brace. (ie.
Minimum-minimum every 4 hours or per physician orders.)

2, Set dial for extension and flexion per physician order.

3. Open brace and place under leg. Line padding up for lower and upper sections of leg and

making sure that circular padding lines up with knee joint, using popliteal fossa as a point of

reference.

Close gp-padding with Velcro.

Apply Velcro straps snugly, but not restricting venous flow.

Record neurovascular assessment, application of brace, and patient’s tolerance in the medical

record.

o oA

C. REFERENCES:
1. W:B-Saunders-Co-—{2004)-Orthopedic-nursing.—4"-ed-National Association of Orthopaedic

Nurses (NAON): Core Curriculum for Orthopaedic Nursing Practice 3™ Edition, April 12,

2013.
2. NAON: Scope and Standards of Orthopaedic Nursing Practice 3™ Edition, April 12, 2013.

Nursing Medical Professional
oparment | ClnlcaPolies | g | QSonel | e | o | Sodr
Council Committee Committee
12/93, 5/00, 6/00,
11/93, 01/11 02/11, 11115 03/11, 12/15 05/16 04/11, 10/186 05/11 7/03, 1/06, 6/08,
05/11

26




2
@‘f} Tri-City Medical Center

Distribution: Patient Care Services

PROCEDURE:

SWALLOW SCREENING IN THE ADULT PATIENT

Purpose:

To screen for appropriateness of oral intake.

Supportive Data:

The swallow screen is performed on any medically stable patient who is at risk for
aspiration secondary to the inability to swallow safely. This includes the nursing
assessment of patient alertness, respiratory status, secretion management, voice quality
and an effective cough. Oral intake is contraindicated if any of the above are
compromised. This would constitute failure of the swallow screen.

A PROCEDURE:

1.

A2,

25.

Prior to 3 Ounce Water Protocol check patient’s ability to swallow by giving the patient a
teaspoon of water and assess for laryngeal movement, clear vocal quality, coughing,
choking, or throat clearing during swallowing up to one minute. If able to swallow
without difficulty proceed to 3 Ounce Water Protocol.

3 Ounce Water Protocol:

a. Observe patient.
i. If patient is not alert then make patient NPO until alert and then screen the
patient.
i, If patient is alert, face is symmetrical, and tolerating their own secretions,

proceed with swallow screen.
1) Sit patient upright.
2) Ask patient to drink entire 3 ounces (90 mL) of water from a cup or
through a straw in sequential swallows without stopping.
3) Assess patient for coughing, choking, or throat clearing during
swallowing and up to one minute after drinking.
b. Resulits
i. Pass: Able to drink 3-ounces of water sequentially without overt signs or
symptoms of aspiration.
ii. Fail: Inability to drink the entire amount sequentially or demonstration of
coughing or choking during trial.
If patient passes protocol, diet per physician/Allied Health Professional’s order
if patient fails protocol:
i Keep NPO, notify the physician as needed
il Obtain order for Swallow Evaluation by Speech Pathologist as needed
Document results in electronic health record under Swallow Screen

B. REFERENCES:

1.

3-2.

Suiter DM, Leder SB, Karas DE. The 3 ounce (90 cc) water swallow challenge: A
screening test for children with suspected oropharyngeal dysphagia. Otolarygology
Head & Neck Surgery 2009;140:187-190.

Suiter DB, Leder SB. Clinical utility of the 3 ounce water swallow test. Dysphagia 2008;
23:244-250

Suitor, D. S., Sloggy, J., & Leder, S.B. (2014). Validation of the Yale Swallow Protocol: A
Prospective Double-Blinded Videofluoroscopic Study. Dysphagia, 199-203.

Clinical Nurse Medical Staff Pharmacy & Profegsional Board of
Revision Dates Policles & Executive Department or | Therapeutics Executive Affairs Dioea;toc:
Procedures Council Division Committee Committee Committee g s
6/06, 7/09, 1/12, 09/11, 4/15, 10/11; 4/15, 11/11; 05/15, )
10116 11716 01117 n/a be n/a 01117 1/12; 06715 6/15




| Patient Care Services-Procedure-Manual
Swallow Screening in the Adult Patient
Page 2 of 2

28



(@’ Tri-City Health Care District
Oceanside, California

Administrative Policy Manual

ISSUE DATE: 12/01 SUBJECT: ADMINISTRATOR ON CALL

REVISION DATE: 11/02, 8/03, 3/06; 02/09; 03/11; 11/13 POLICY NUMBER: 8610-281

Department Approvai: 01/17
Administrative Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 44/4301/17
Medical Executive Committee Approval: n/a
Professional Affairs Committee Approvail: 04/14
Board of Directors Approval: 04/14

A. PURPOSE:
' 1. To provide a process of administrative oversight and direction to ensure effectiveness of service

continues during off hours (after business hours, weekends and holidays).

B. DEFINITIONS:
1. Administrator on Call: The Chief Operating Officer (COO), Chief Nurse Executive (CNE) and

Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and Senior LeadersDbirectors-of Clinical-Areas are assigned on a
rotational basis to provide administrative oversight and direction.

2. Administrative Supervisor: The Administrative Supervisor on duty is responsible to the Directors
and Managers for the management of patient care activities and hospital operations on their
assigned shift. They have authority to act in the absence of the Chief Nurse Executive, Directors,
and Nurse Managers.

C. POLICY:

1. The Administrator on Call (AOC) rotates weekly amongst the Senior Team.

2. The Administrative Supervisor will report any Level IV (Sentinel) occurrence/incident or significant
patient care, risk management or operational issues to the Administrator on Call. Types of
occurrences/incidents that are reportable to the Administrator on Call are:

a. Any occurrence requiring reporting to the California Department of Public Health per
Administrative Policy Mandatory Reporting Requirements #236

b. Significant risk management issues
c. Significant physician, staff or operational issues
d. Implementation of Hospital Incident Command System (HICS)
e. Media contacts or potential media reportable events
f. Non-availability of inpatient beds
3. All reported occurrences will include the following information in the Administrative Supervisor

a Brief description of event

b Individuals involved

c. Action Plan (current and proposed)

d. Impact on Organization or Outcome (current and potential)
e Communication Status

f Requested Assistance

i. None Necessary

ii. Approval

i, Plan Modification

D. RELATED DOCUMENTS:
1. Administrative Policy: Policy Mandatory Reporting Requirements #236

29



@) Tri-City Health Care District
Oceanside, California

Administrative Policy Manual

ISSUE DATE: 7/76 SUBJECT: Lost and Found Articles
REVISION DATE: 4/89; 6/94; 10/99; 9/00; 9/02; POLICY NUMBER: 8610-202
6/03; 2/06; 01/09; 02/11
Department Approval: 0117
Administrative Policies & Procedures Committee Approval: 04/4401/17
Medical Executive Committee Approval: n/a
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 02/14
Board of Directors Approval: 02/14

A PURPOSE:

1.

The Lost and Found service provided by Security and the Patient Representative Office provides
a method for returning lost or misplaced articles to their proper owners and/or reimbursement, if
applicable.

B. DEFINITIONS:

1.

ltems of Value: Money, Credit Cards (to be destroyed after 90 days), jewelry, and watches.

C. POLICY:

1.

Lost or misplaced items shall be promptly returned to their rightful owners.

D. PROCESS:

1.

When an article is found, a reasonable effort is made to determine its ownership immediately,
and, whenever possible, to return the article to its rightful owner. If this is not possible, the person
who found the article must attach a Tri-City Healthcare District (TCHD) “Found Property Slip” and
take directly to the Lost and Found or Security. Call Security and someone will meet you to
receive the item. “Found Property Slips” may be obtained from Security. NOTE: The loss of
hearing aids, dentures and glasses will be reported directly to the Patients’ Representative.

If the owner is a patient who has been discharged, a representative from the Nursing Unit where

the article was found will contact the patient or his/her family and ask him/her to claim the article in

the Lost and Found section of Security. The time and date of the contact, the name of the person
contacted, and the person making the call, is to be recorded and provided to Security. The article
may not be held on the unit, but forwarded immediately to Security.

The article is to be forwarded by placing it in a container labeled with the name of the person who

found the article, the patient's name, address, room number, contents of container, and recorded

notes of contact with patient or family on the TCHD “Found Property Slip.” A notation should also
be made on the patient's medical record in Clinical Notes.

ltems found in areas other than patient rooms, which cannot be returned to the owners (or

ownership cannot be determined), are to be placed in a container and labeled with a TCHD

“Found Property Slip®, indicating where the item was found, the time and date of discovery, the

name of the person who found the article, and the contents of the container and sent to Lost and

Found.

Upon receipt of lost items Security will:

a. Place all items deemed to be of value in the-Patient Business-Services Security Office
safe until claimed. If unclaimed after 90 days, the item is to be donated to an approved
charitable organization.

b. Give all other items an identification number and properly log into the Lost and Found
Conirol Binder.

c. Attempt to identify ownership, the:?ocontact owner.



Administrative Policy Manual
Lost and Found Articles — 8610-202

Page 2 0f 3
&-6.

6-7.

89.

8:10.

10-11.

12,

13.

The Patient Representative will Mmail identified articles to owners who are unable to come to

the hospital. Mail certified, return receipt. When-receiptisreturned-to-FCHD-itis-to-be-scanned-te
patients-elesironicresard:

e:a. After a period of 90 days all unclaimed items will be donated to a charity as determined by
Administration and allowed by law.

Anyone who has lost articles may contact Security throughby-calling the PBX operator.-and-have

operator-conhectyouto-Lost-and Found,

Reports of lost articles that cannot be found are to be referred to the Patient Representative's

Office via phone, with follow-up in writing for investigational purposes and information with

description and contact information placed in the Lost and Found Inquiry book.

If an investigation concludes a hospital representative is responsible for a lost/damaged article,

and reimbursement by the Organization is appropriate, a check request and a copy of the

investigation General Release of All Claims Form (from the patient) will be submitted by the

Patient Representative Office to the Director of Risk Management.

The Director of Risk Management will obtain the signature of the proper administrator.if-needed:

otherwise-hefshe-will sign-the-cheskrequest-The Patient Representative will obtain the cost

center location for charging purposes. The check request will be forwarded to AP in
Accountmg

whe%rll-seimt-te—the—Aeeeuntmg—Depanment-When the check is |ssued Accountmg ema|ls

the Patient Representative the date, the check number and the amount. Accounting sends
out the check to the patient/family member or the professional who is preparing the
replacement articles (for example new dentures or hearlng ald)

ier-The original forms

will be filed along wnth the check mformatlon to the Patlent Relatlons Specialist and into
the Complalnt Resolutlon fi Ie

E.  RELATED DOCUMENT(S):

121,

General Release of All Claims Form Sample

31



Administrative Policy Manual
Lost and Found Articles — 8610-202
Page 3 of 3

General Release of All Claims Form Sample

The undersigned, being over the age of eighteen, for the sole consideration for waiving events that occurred on
or about date: with a value in the amount of ($00.00) by TRI-CITY
HEALTHCARE DISTRICT (hereinafter referred to as the "RELEASEE") do/does hereby and for my/our/its
heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns release, acquit and forever discharge the RELEASEE,
their agents, servants, successors, heirs, executors, administrators and all other persons, firms, corporations,
associations or partnerships of and from any and all claims, actions, causes of action, demands, rights, damages,
costs, loss of service, expenses and compensation whatsoever, which the undersigned now has or which may
hereafter accrue on account of or in any way growing out of any and all known and unknown, foreseen and
unforeseen bodily and personal injuries and/or property damage or loss and the consequences thereof resulting.

It is understood and agreed that this settlement is the compromise of doubtful and disputed claims, and that
the payment made is not to be construed as an admission of liability on the part of the RELEASEE. The
RELEASEE specifically denies liability therefor and intends merely to avoid litigation and buy its peace. It is
further understood and agreed that this Release in Full of All Claims and the write off herein acknowledged shall
be held in confidence and that the undersigned and his/her attorneys will not publicize, publish, disclose, talk
about, or promete the publication or disclosure of the facts or terms of this Release in Full of All Claims or the
payment/write off here acknowledged to any person not a party to this Release of All Claims.

It is further understood and agreed that all rights under Section 1542 of the Civil Code of California and any
similar law of any state or territory of the United States are hereby expressly waived. Section 1542 reads as
follows:

“Section 1542. [Certain claims not affected by general RELEASE.] A general release does
not extend to a claim which the creditor does not know or suspect to exist in its favor at the time
of executing the release, which if known by hiim must have materially affected his settlement
with the debtor.”

The Undersigned hereby declares and agrees that they rely only upon their own judgment, belief and
knowledge of the nature, extent, effect and duration of said damages and liability. This RELEASE is made
without reliance upon any statement or representation of the RELEASEE or its/their representatives or by any
party or person employed by it/them.

The Undersigned further declares and represents that no promise, inducement or agreement not herein
expressed has been made to the Undersigned, and that this RELEASE contains the entire agreement between the
parties hereto and that the terms of this RELEASE are contractual and not a mere recital.

The Undersigned has been advised by the RELEASEE of the right to have this RELEASE reviewed by counsel
and has either voluntarily chosen not to seek counsel or the Undersigned have been represented by counsel of their
own choosing and have relied only upon the advice and counsel of their attorney.

The Undersigned has read the foregoing RELEASE and fully understands it.

CAUTION: READ BEFORE SIGNING BELOW

I declare under penaity of perjury according to the laws of the state of California that the forgoing is true and
correct.

Signed this date.  Print or Type Name:

Signature:

FOR YOUR PROTECTION CALIFORNIA LAW
REQUIRES THE FOLLOWING TO APPEAR ON THIS FORM:

ANY PERSON WHO KNOWINGLY PRESENTS FALSE OR FRAUDULENT CLAIM FOR THE PAYMENT OF
ALOSS IS GUILTY OF A CRIME AND MAY BE SUBJECT TO FINES AND CONFINEMENT IN STATE
PRISON.

32




@r1rici -
Tri-City Health Care District
Oceanside, California

Infection Control Policy Manual

SUBJECT: Prion Diseases: Transmissible Spongiform Encephalopathies (TSE) such as: Creutzfeldt-
Jakob disease (CJD) and Variant (vCJD), Gerstmann-Straussler-Scheinker Syndrome
(GSS), Kuru, Fatal Insomnia, or Bovine Spongiform Encephalopathy (BSE or Mad Cow
disease)

ISSUE DATE: 01/03

REVISION DATE: 01/09 POLICY NUMBER: 1C.6.5

Department Approval: 03/16

infection Control Committee Approval: 4/1203/16

Medical Executive Committee Approval: 2/4201/17

Professional Affairs Committee Approval:

Board of Directors Approval: 24z

A INTRODUCTION:

1.

Prion diseases, or transmissible spongiform encephalopathies (TSE’s) are a family of
rare progressive neurodegenerative disorders that affect both humans and animals. They
are distinguished by long incubation periods, characteristic spongiform changes
associated with neuronal loss, and a failure to induce inflammatory response. The
causative agents of TSE’s are believed to be prions. The term “prions” refers to
abnormal, pathogenic agents that are transmissible and are able to induce abnormal
folding of specific normal cellular proteins called prion proteins that are found most
abundantly in the brain. This abnormal folding of the prion proteins leads to progressive
degenerative brain and nervous system damage. Prion diseases are usually rapid
progressive and always fatal. Examples of Human Prion Diseases: Creutzfeldt-Jacob
Disease (CJD), Variant Creutzfeldt-Jakob Disease (vCJD), Gerstmann-Straussler-
Scheinher Syndrome, Fatal Familial Insomnia, and Kuru. Examples of Animal Prion
Diseases: Bovine Spongiform Encephalopathy (BSE or Mad Cow Dlsease), Chronic
Wastmg Dlsease, and Scrapie.

Prion diseasesTSEs are not known to spread by contact from by-centact-from person to
person. In the healthcare setting, risk of transmission to patients has been associated
with direct contact with infectious tissues (See B.76. Tissue Infectivity). Contaminated
surgical equipment or implantation of electrodes deep in the brain can also transmit
infectious prions from one patient to another. ITransmission has occurred during invasive
medical interventions (two confirmed and four unconfirmed cases) after contaminated medical
equipment was not properly cleaned before use on another person.

The prions that cause TSE’s exhibit an unusual resistance to conventional chemical and
physical decontamination methods. The infectious agents that transmit prion diseases
are resistant to inactivation by heat and chemicals, and therefore require special
biosafety precautions. |ncmerat|on is the preferred method for all instruments exposed
to hngh infectivity tissues. 4




Infection Control Policy Manual
Transmissible Spongiform Encephalopathies (TSE) such as: Creutzfeldt-Jakob disease (CJD) and Variant (vCJD), Gerstmann-Straussler-Scheinker

Syndrome (GSS), Kuru, Fatal Insomnia, or Bovine Spongiform Encephalopathy (BSE or Mad Cow disease) — IC.6.5

Page 2 of 9
4.

5.

Prion diseases are transmissible by inoculation or ingestion of infected tissues. A new
variant CJD has been linked to eating contaminated beef, elk or deer meat.

Symptoms include an insidious onset of confusion, progressive dementia, variable ataxia,
seizures, visual or sensory deficits, and rapid mental deterioration- in patients’ aged 16+,
most frequently between 40 and 70 years old. Incubation period ranges from 15 months to more
than 30 years, usually fatal within 1 year after diagnosis.-

The most common form, sporadic Creutzfeldt-Jakob disease (CJD), has a worldwide death rate
of about 1 case per million people each year.

B. PATIENT CARE:

1.
2.

2:3.
3-4.

4-5.
&:6.

6-T7.

Normal social and patient contact, and non-invasive procedures with TSE patients do not
present a risk o healthcare workers, relatives, other patients or visitors.

Standard precautions should be used for all known or suspected cases.Apply-Standard
Precautions-

It is very important that patients who are known or suspected to have prion disease be
identified before any surgical procedure involving tissues that may be infectious.
Patients with TSEs must not donate organs, tissues, or blood components.-

TSE is not known to be transmitted from mother to child during pregnancy or childbirth.

To prevent the transmission, it is important to consider: (1) the probability that an individual has
or will develop TSE, (2) the level of infectivity in tissues or fluids, and (3) the nature or route of
the exposure. Risk assessment and prevention of exposure through the use of personal
protective equipment and disposable equipment are the best means to reduce any risk of
transmission in the healthcare setting [Assignment of different organs and tissues to
categories of high and low infectivity is chiefly based upon the frequency with which infectivity
has been detectable, rather than upon quantitative assays of the level of infectivity, for which
data are incomplete.]

Tissue infectivity.

a. Highly infective tissues Highest-concentrationin Bbrain, spinal cord & eye

b. Low infective tissues Cerebral spinal fluid, ltung, liver, kidney, spleen/lymph
nodes, and placenta
C. Not infective Heart, skeletal muscle, peripheral nerve, adipose tissue,

gingival tissue, intestine, adrenal gland, thyroid, prostate,
testis) or in blood, bodily secretions or excretions (urine,
feces, saliva, mucous, semen, milk, tears, sweat, serous

exudates).
Route of exposure
a. Very serious risk CNS exposures (i.e. inoculation of the eye or CNS)
b. Greater potential risk Transcutaneous exposures: cut or puncture by a

contaminated sharp instrument or contact with the mucus
membrane of the eye

c. Negligible risk Cutaneous exposure of intact skin or mucous membranes,
except those of the eye

C DIAGNOSTIC AND SURGICAL PROCEDURES
1.

All non-emergent brain biopsy procedures and neurosurgical and neurcophthalmology

procedures are screened by the schedulers in Surgery Services or Interventional Radiology

(See Appendix A). If the brain biopsy is for any reason OTHER than tumor, or if TSE is

suspected, notify the departments listed on the screening tool so that planning can be made for

instrument handling, storage, cleaning and decontamination or disposal.

a. See Appendix B for Instrument Handling algorithm and Controlling TSE Agent
Transmission Table on pages 6,7,-ard 8, and 9 for details. Clinical Laboratory stores 1
Molar sodium hydroxide.

b. All known cases and cases that meet the case definition of suspect Transmissible
Spongiform Encephalopathies will be performed with disposable instruments whenever

34



Infection Control Policy Manual
Transmissible Spongiform Encephalopathies (TSE) such as: Creutzfeldt-Jakob disease (CJD) and Variant (vCJD), Gerstmann-Straussler-Scheinker
Syndrome (GSS), Kuru, Fatal Insomnia, or Bovine Spongiform Encephalopathy (BSE or Mad Cow disease) — 1C.6.5

Page 30f 9
2.
3.
|
|
4,
5.
I
D.

d.

possible.

Procedures that are normally carried out at the bedside (e.g. lumbar puncture) may be
performed at the bedside. Use a chux at the site to contain a potential spill of infective
material.

Alert the laboratory and clearly label all specimens. Place specimens in formalin as
usual.

Dental Procedures: general infection control practices recommended by national dental
associations are sufficient when treating TSE patients during procedures not involving
neurovascular tissue. The following are precautions for major dental work:

a.
b.

C.

Use single-use items and equipment e.g. needles and anesthetic cartridges.

Re-usable dental broaches and burrs that may have become contaminated with
neurovascular tissue should be destroyed after use by incineration or decontaminated by
a method listed on Controlling TSE Agent Transmission Table on pages 6, 7,-and 8, and
9 for details.

Schedule procedures involving neurovascular tissue at end of day to permit more
extensive cleaning and decontamination.

If reusable instrumentation must be used keep instruments and other devices moist between the
time of exposure to infectious materials and subsequent decontamination and cleaning. See
Appendix B for Instrument Handling algorithm and Controlling TSE Agent Transmission Table
on pages 6,7,-and 8, and 9 for details.

a.

Remove bio-burden from reusable instruments while wearing a face shield or goggles

and surgical mask and double glove. Instruments are then placed in a flash pan for

processing as close as possible to the room where the procedure was performed.

Autoclave for 18 minutes at 134° C.

If the procedure was performed in another department (for example a brain biopsy in the

CT Scan) call Sterile Processing Department the-OR charge-nurse-for assistance with

autoclaving.

After autoclaving place instruments in a robust, leak-proof container labeled “Incinerate

Only”. This box will be placed and remain in the-SPB-Managers-Officea designated

locked area.

i. If the laboratory result is negative, all items can be returned to the
decontamination area and reprocesses as normal.

i. If the laboratory result confirms a Transmissible Spongiform Encephalopathy, the
instruments are-incineratedwill be sent out for incineration.

See unit specific policies for safety in the Clinical Laboratory.
Occupational exposure

a.

&-b.

There have been no confirmed cases of occupational transmission of TSE to humans.
Report any occupational exposure to blood, body fluids, or other potentially infectious
materials to your supervisor and go to Emergency Room for assistance.

RELATED DOCUMENTS:

Infection Control Manual: Bloodborne Exposure Control Plan

Infection Control Manual Standard and Transmission Based Precautions
Employee Health Services Policies: AP&P #401 Injury Prevention Program

Tri-City Medical Center Laboratory Procedure: The Handling of Tissues of Patients with
Transmissble Spongiform Encephalopathies (TSE) including Creutzfeld-Jakob Disease

PON=

REFERENCES:
www.who.int/eme WHO Infection Control Guidelines for Transmissible Spongiform

Encephalopathies. (1999)

1.

35



Infection Control Policy Manual
Transmissible Spongiform Encephalopathies (TSE) such as: Creutzfeldt-Jakob disease (CJD) and Variant (vCJD), Gerstmann-Strdussler-Scheinker

Syndrome (GSS), Kuru, Fatal Insomnia, or Bovine Spongiform Encephalopathy (BSE or Mad Cow disease) — IC.6.5
Page 4 of 9
2. Maemillan—SKavanagh, B. (20142000) Creutzfeldt-Jakob disease and other Prion

Diseasespriens. In P. Grota (Ed.), APIC Text of Infection Control and Epidemiology 4™ Ed.,

40873:1-140.

3. Karasir{, M: (2014, Octob'er). Special Needs Populations: Perioperative Care of the Patient
with Creutzfeldt-Jakob Disease. Vol 100, No 4.

4, Steelman, V.M. (1994) Creutzfeld-Jakob Disease: recommendations for infection control.

American Journal of Infection Control, 22(5): 312-318.

5. Brown, P., Wolff, A., Gajdusek, D.C. (1990) A simple and effective method for inactivating virus
infectivity in formalin-fixed tissue samples from patients with CJD. Neurology, 40: 887-890

6:6. Rutula, W., and Weber, D. (2010, February). SHEA Guideline: Guideline for Disinfection
and Sterilization of Prion-Contaminated Medical Instruments. Infection Control and

Hospital Epidemiology, Vol 31, No.2, 107-117.

6—Bloodborne-Expesure-Control Plan1C 144
5 Eranl Health Sem Balici

36



Appendix A

Neurosurgery Transmissible Spongiform Encephalopathies Screening Tool

This information is required when scheduling any patient for non-emergent craniotomy or brain biopsy to
identify potential Creutzfeldt-Jakob Disease (CJD), Bovine Spongiform Encephalopathy (BSE),
Gerstemenn-Straussler-Scheinder Syndrome (GSS), Kuru, or Fatal Insomnia

Circle One

1. Does the patient present with symptoms of TSE (rapidly progressive dementia,

cerebella symptoms, spasticity or hyper-reflexia, EEG with periodic sharp-wave Yes No

complexes, rapid cerebral atrophy on CT scan)?
2. Does the patient have a family history of CJD or CJD-like fatal illness? Yes No
3. Is the patient being scheduled for craniotomy or brain biopsy when diagnosis is

unknown or uncertain (no specific lesion identified by imaging procedures)? Yes No
4, Is the biopsy for the diagnosis of dementia or encephalitis? Yes No

Patient Name Today’s Date

Surgeon providing the screening information

Office personnel providing the screening information

Print name of scheduler taking the Information

A “No” answer may be scheduled as usual. File-this-form-in-the-scheduling-deparmentforatleast?
YEEFES

A “Yes” answer to one of these questions means the patient meets the case definition of suspect
Transmissible Spongiform Encephalopathies. Call the following services below to report and
reference the policy in the Infectlon Control Manual I€—6-4—Transm135|ble Spongiform
Encephalopathies. W

Service Phone Number Message | Spoke with (name of person) and
left Comments
Neuro-Speciality Coordinator 5400
Environmental Services 7295
SPD Ops Manager 7338
Histology Supervisor 7914
Infection Control 36077410 or
5696
Pharmacy 3012

37



Instrument Handling Algorithm

Appendix B

Decontamination and disposition of instruments and equipment used with confirmed or suspected
Transmissible spongiform encephalopathies (TSEs) patients.

Proven TSE

Highly infectious
tissue PLUS CSF

All other
tissues

Clinically suspected TSE

Highly infectious All other
tissue PLUS CSF tissues

Clean with high-level
process and quarantine Clean and

Use single use
instruments
and then
incinerate

Incineration
preferred or
use a high-level
process

Nt \

Positive
diagnosis

Incineration
preferred

38

quarantine

diagnosis
Positive
I diagnosis
Routine
cleaning
and
sterilization
Use high-level
process




-jdep yyesy sakojdug
AU Ul SOy jle uejuleyy "SjUSPIoUI |je JUBIND0(Q

‘wapougsod
pue sainpasosd ABojoyed Jaye Apoq sy jo Bulpuey
jeioads pue anssy Jo Bufpuey |ewads o) oey

‘uopoas

Xau 29g "Juswdinba/sjuswngsul asn-s|Buis pue
sano|ff ‘sumob/suoide [esodsip jo asn annbai ‘BaWwoD
pue ‘eugai ‘Jajew einp ‘Aeynyd *piod |euids ‘ulesq
B2 ‘piny Jo enssp ysu-ybiy Buiroaul sainpaold
‘s1apiroid aeo yjesy 0} ysu e sjuasaid 1oejuod
[ewuou yey) 2ouspiae |eaibojoiwapids ou s) asey)

‘abepueq joosdia)em
B UIIM J8A0D pue ‘asul ‘Jejem Adeos wiem
Uyim ysem ‘pasiq o) syis sbeinodus Apuss

‘@|qeldaoe s| Bujtujequig

‘Buljpuey ajsem supnol pue
‘Bupepunei JenBai ‘Buluesio piepues asn

Ainfuy sdieys eafojdws

psuuopad
wapounsod ou ‘yieap Jaye alen

sainpaooid aAISBALIUON

‘(oanye)0s 90160p

14y e Uy aro (eliwey juejdsues
J8)ew einp ‘yueidivses suourioy)
‘onewojdwAse gro 40} ysu

Je 38 peyradsns {qro) speltodg

SsjusWILLIOY)

seolAsppanposd pue poyiepy

sainpesoid

sisoubeiq

leyidsoy ayy ut uoissiwsuel ) Juaby 3g] Buljonuc)

39



*SIND20 UOReUIWE)Uoap
1DuN JS10W SHUS LINJYSU}

dasy) -sapoayeul sseosold aAepoIne
ay) Jopuas pue Jusbe 3g ayy

uo 199ye aAnoajoid e asey Aew ‘HoeN
Aq js1y pejeAROEUl USSG JOU BARY
UoIum ‘sjusLuniisut uo paup anssiy
‘Juabe aidesas ayy Bulpt uj JusisiSUCOW
usaq sey ayuo|yoodAy WNpos %62
‘(seoeuns pue swe)

a1ed jusnjed [EONLId-LIOU ‘IBJEM UNM
poesuu pue anoy suo 104 panjipun
HOEN N g Bufiem-sronuBues-uit-09
1o HOEN-BIeN-) sluabe snoxou Lim
9SEJ 8} JO pud 1B ,S80BUNS LINO),
J0 UopeulLRIUDaP SDBUNS 10} MOjj
Aep auj} Jo pus au je payooq sesen
“(ea1s0L100 AYBiy St HOBN)

‘asn aylj-jo-pus Buuesu juawdinbe jo
asn pue Aiddns 10§ (Qds) Juswupredag
Buissaooid 8|uBlS U iNsuoD

‘eale
pe)20| pejeubisep e uiesie-sebeueyy
sy} ug auguelenb 1o} A4S o3 Yodsues

pue xoq ,AjuQ 8)essuidul, ue uj adeld "9
*19zZ)|us)s wnooeassd

e uj Jaurejuos usdo ue asn 9 pgi Je "W
8| JO} SWa)l o|qesnal SAB|O0INE Wesls ‘9
*s316606

pue ssew 10 pisjys aoe} |in} Buuesm s)ium
BaJE YO Ul SIUSWINASY| UBII0 [enueyy G
Buipuey jo esea 40§ a)sem

ANpIoS 0} apioiWwRld Ym 1eal] "uoResauinul
Joj JuSNe ||e WIRUOD pUE BUYUOD)

“Aip adwm pue soyem Ul asupy

"ujWw 0g Joj Jem Ajsnonunuod Jo ‘pabiewgns
ARlejdwo ‘yuswdinba pajquisssesip
“eem-iesed-HOBN-eIoN-tPaINIpUNn
HOBN N ¢ - uogosjuisip jeojwsy) g

xoq (ANQO Sjessupoul, ue

ul syjopo Buiuee)o soeyd ‘ased jo pus )y ‘g
"{O 8U) ul SaoeuNs 10}

PaIn|ipun HOBN N Zierem—jeb-ed-{HOeN)
oppeelpiy-tintpos-Ieiow-) poysw Sulueso
lewadns ‘abuods/uiop dwep asn ),
‘wooy Yo ‘sdeig

‘Juawdinbs aip jo

uoiBUILLIBILOD IO JeYelds [Bjusplode
Juanaud o} peay suoned ayy Jesu
Juauwidinbe Atojesdsalonsyissue
adelp/alejos| Ajpyeidwon

"Woos ayy ug Juswidinba

40 Junowe jsea| ay) dagy|

'saA0(b abueuo gnop uy ) "anssiy
usoefpe pue pioo jeulds ‘ulelq ym
10BJUOD Ut UDaQ 9ABY UDIUM ‘SBA0|B
UHm saoeuns Buiyonoy ploay
sadeip opseid

Uim pasn aq jsnw Jey} Juawdinbs
Jamod sjgesodsipuou Joao)

‘Siauejuod
2]qesnal YIm JOBJU0D U SSED SIY} LOLY
sjuswungsu Aue jnd Jou og “|esodsip Joy
Jopudn Juswebeuew a)sem au ||ed pue
xogq ,AUQ a)essuiouy, ue ul ssjqesodsip
fle aceyd ‘amnpasoid ey} Jo pue s )Y Z
*Sjuswinysut Jo Buypuey
SS99Xa PIOAY SHSP JO 12D SWIB)!
daey| 0} poyew Buidm [epyladns-abuods
HO wiop dwep e asn ‘ainpasosd Buung )
xoq AuQ
ayeseudut, w Buioeid o) soud apiweid
UM JOUBILIOD Jeal) puUB 19)eMe)SEM
uofong -a1a|dwod si amnpasosd
uaym sa||ddns sjgesodsip sjelsunu)
‘S|jup/smes
puey (jesjueyoaWw) [EOLIOa[BUOU aS)
‘sadelp ‘sumob ‘syoed YO sjqesodsip asn
g|qissod
alaym ,9sn ajii-jo-pus, Bunesu yJuswdinbe
Jo Juswidinbs ajua)s pajesipap asn
‘Jooj Buiusaiog seppedojeydeous
wuopbuodg sjqissiwsued .
KiaBinsoinaN ayy uo pajsy sjuawedap
8y} Aigou 0} a1e sI9INPaYdS "samnpasosd
Buyinpayos uaym ABojoipey leuonuaniaiu|
o Liebing us|e 0} s uoaBins alyy
"Aep auj Jo pus sy
12 9sED 51009 ‘aoe|d 9)e) Jsntu asnpassosd J|
‘ainpasoud
HO Butuuopiad pioae ‘sjqissod ateupp

juawdinba sjqesodsipuou

18y10

(ABojoweyyydooinau
‘Areyinid ‘eanp ‘piod feuids
‘utesq) fuebinsoinau 1oy posn juswidinbg

JSL umouy

sisoubelq

lexdsoy ay3 ui uoissiwisues] Juaby IS Bujjjonuon

40



uonezijus)s pue Bujuesio Jenbay

anewoydwise

10} YSU S
‘suopneosald ‘(351 peyoadsns asL J0pys =YY
JONUOD UONSaMUS SUNNOI pJepuels 10} anpasoid anoge 93s) ssatoid LORRUILLIRIUCIDP
led se pafpuey aie suswioads (oo JBYIO HOEN 8 asn Jo 8|qissod Jaaleym sjuswNsul sigesodsip
asn (powuad uoneqnou) Buo)) pakelep si sisoubelp | 351 peyvedsng
‘suopnesaid |osuod
uofoaguUl augnos piepue)s Jad se
pajpuey aie suawioads eI JBYIO e
‘pazyusys
wea}s 9 usy) pue apAyspleuLoy
uabe aideios ay) u) paxy JI 9AoBUl aq |[as >mm__ onssiy e _
U] UBQ Sey ajiiojydodAy wnipos %, ° ‘suognesald jonuoo )
U E.o_.u_m_vwmp“uo asn _M:o_”___um.m ‘__M_ ummm ay) Wmmmwommuw uogodju| sunnos piepue)s Jad se .mh_.wuoooa t=[e] w& mc_c.:otwﬁ_ u_owm. o_n_wmoa 2JBUM
pue uofeUILLEJUOD PIOAR 0} anbjuyda) 0) uojualie asolD palpuey 8ie SUBWIDRdS B YY)D e ) asn Jaye sadelp Jauieq m:z% m.v_om wwm_mc_o:_
Red .mmu&...:m pue swia)) ajeos jusped [eonUd uUou ‘1a)em | .n_,mn_ ocwomaw uMmEtmamu ajqissod a1sym Juawdinbs asn-ajbuls m_nmwo.mw_%mmmwm
anjpun Hoe| Buniem sog sojdwes (SND) wa)sAs snoateu I
- uoﬂé_ﬁwﬂ}yﬂwﬁﬂwgiw e S |2AUSD 10§ € [9AS] S| JUBWILIBIUOD o JOABUBUM JUBLLUOIAUS MO UE Ul SainNpadoid wiousd
UM S92BJNS PaJEUIWBIUOD SNSSH Ulel] JO UORBUILIBIUDaP ‘leusiew Asdoiq enssy pue ‘sanpasold asayy
10§ mojfe Aep ay) JO pua a8y} Je payooq sase) e urelq Joy Jejuaa gey ABojouedosnsu uuoylad pinoys spiezey 3S | Jo aseme yejs pauien Aug
*S90BUNS PSJRUIWIEJUCO-UOU (B 10} UORIDJUISIPp BURNoy o ysieoads e 0) J9ja) o} Jusprud s1)} e lojjuo) uonoauj AljoN 381 umouy |
sjuswiiod Buyipuey uswioedg seisdoig/eanjound Jequin sisoubeiq
“2AEjal
‘punoy st esed pasoubelp 351 eoiBap-ysiy
£ Jusne aJes Liea ay) u) Aiajes o ubiew e apiaaid [m sajpko e ul gro [eliuey
uogezijus)s Juswdinba ainpeoouid jeoibinsosnau papesbdn e Queldsuesy

“AIAnos)ul mo) Aian aney sjusped opewoiduisy e
‘Buol s1 35 Jo) pouad uopegnoul sy e

(uonepuswiwods

[oge} 0) Buipioooe By 198IU0D) UISeq & u) JuejoauISIp opelh
ledsoy e ywm saunpasoud uoposyuisip pue Bujuesio seinbay e

"UolEZ)|US)S pue BulLuEBlo pJepuUE)S MO0

‘aAoge sk

sda)ls mo|jo} pue a|gissod Jaasseum SuBLLINASU ajgesodsip
as ‘(pouad uonegnoul 5uof) paAejep si sisoubelp I
"ainpaooud YO ey Buiuaped pioae ‘ejgissod areyp

jeawsod ‘iajew
eanp Quaidioas

auouuioy)
anewojdwAse
381 10))su 3y

"OAD(R SJUBWIWIND 285

"8A0qE Se sda)s Moj|04

"UOHEZ||LISLS BUINOI UBL) *I0}08JUISIP
Joysem e u| Buueso teinbas mojjoy ‘angebau o
‘Juawidinba sjessuuy ‘aanssod pauuyuod Ji °
‘pazieuy st sisoube)p
oy} |pun Juswdinba sjgesnal peaepolne aupuelenp -
ads

"9A0Qe Sk sdajs mojo4

3s1 payoedsng

sjusWIWIo)

ysu
tenusjod ‘uswdinba ‘seinpasoid a0

~ (ABojowijeynidooinau Kieynpd

‘eJnp ‘piod jeuids ‘useiq) A1afinsoinau 1oy pesn swdinby sisoufiejq

jeydsol ay3 ui uoissiwsues] Jusby 35| Bujjjornuon

41



Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

SURGICAL SERVICES

SUBJECT: BLOCK TIME

ISSUE DATE: 3/08
REVISION DATE(S): 6/09, 11/09, 4/15, 11/15

Department Approval Date(s): 10/16
Operating Room Committee Approval Date(s): 10/16
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval Dates(s): n/a

| Medical Executive Committee Approval Date(s): 01/17

Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s):
Board of Directors Approval Date(s):

A

1.

PURPOSE:

To outline the granting, review, use; and revocation use-of block time. Block time scheduling will
be provided in the operating room fo regulate and ensure continuity of scheduling and to
optimize the utilization of the operating room.

B. DEFINITIONS:

1. Block Time: Surgical time consistently reserved for a surgeon, surgeon group or specialty.

2. Full Block: Eight (8) hours of time.

3. Half Block: Four (4) hours of time.

4, Release Time: Specified lead time prior to the day of the block which is a cutoff date or time.
a. If the block is not booked by this time, the time will become available for open booking.
b. If the surgeon voluntarily releases the block prior to the specified release date, the time

will not be included when the adjusted utilization is calculated.
C. If the block is not released prior to the specified lead time, the unused time is included in
the adjusted utilization.

5. Utilization: The amount of time used for surgical cases.

8:6.  Utilization calculation: The amount of time used for surgical cases divided by the amount
of time allocated to the block.

6-7.  Adjusted Utilization: Utilization calculated with released time subtracted from the allocated
time.

#8. Unadjusted Utilization: Utilization calculated with all released and unused time included
in the allocated time.

C. POLICY:

1. Requested/Approval of Block Time:
a. Surgeon, service; or group may request time.
b. Hospital administration may request time on behalf of a new surgeon or service.
c. Block time will be granted based on actual/anticipated case volume.
ed. Requests will be approved by the OR Committee.

2. Release Time: Release time may vary among individual block and percentage released,

depending upon utilization a

nd type of service.

----------

b-a.  For utilization of 85% or greater for a three-month period: 24 hour release (except in
cases where 25% of the block time is released).
&b. For utilization of 70-84%: 72 hour release.

42



Surgical Services Policy Manual
| Block Time 7420—103

Page 2 of 2

e.c.  For utilization ef70-84%at or below 69%: 72-heur7 day release.

£d.  Release block time cannot be reclaimed once released and other cases are scheduled.

g-e. Released block time can be reclaimed if no cases are scheduled in the time.

kf.  If the block time is voluntarily released before the assigned release time, the released
time does not count in the adjusted utilization ard-calculation.

kg.  Ifthe block time is not voluntarily released before the automatic release time, then
unused time will be included in the adjusted utilization.

fh.  Adjustments to release times will be made quarterly (January, April, July, October)
based on the prior quarter’s utilization.

Maintenance of Block Time:

a. Monthly block time utilization reports will be distributed to individual surgeons.
b. Monthly block time utilization reports will be reviewed at OR Committee.
C. Quarterly (January, April, July, October) block utilization will be reviewed and the block

time may be increased, reduced or revoked based on the prior six-month average.
d. Block utilization must be at 6660% adjusted or 50% unadijusted to be-retained block

time.
e. If utilization for the previous quarter falls below requirements, the surgeon-/-surgeon

group-/-service will be notified of the deficiency. They-will-then-be-given-the-next-quarter

- allfa - aala

gﬁ. Periodic reviews of block time and surgeon on time arrival by the OR-Committee may
result in further adjustments to or reinstatement of block time.

hg.  Generally, action is taken based on a rolling six-month average, NOT by per month
average.

43



%‘é) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

SURGICAL SERVICES

SUBJECT: BUMPING SURGERY PROCEDURES

ISSUE DATE: 6/09
REVISION DATE(S): 11/10, 09/12, 4/15

Department Approval Date(s): 10/16
Operating Room Committee Approval Date(s): 10/16
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval Dates(s): n/a

Medical Executive Committee Approval Date(s): 01/17
Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s):
Board of Directors Approval Date(s):

A. PURPOSE:

1.

To provide guidelines for “bumping” of a surgical procedure

B. DEFINITIONS:

1.

2.

Bumping: The process of superceding a scheduled case with an emergency/emergent/urgent
procedure

Emergency Surgical Procedure: Any procedure requiring surgical intervention immediately
upon presentation to preserve life or limb. Emergency procedures are performed in the first
available operating room, or may require staffing an additional operating room (OR) immediately
to care for the patient (i.e., trauma).

Emergent Surgical Procedure Any procedure requiring surgical intervention within
approximately one hour of presentation. Emergent procedures are performed in the first
available time in the OR schedule.

Urgent Surgical Procedure: Any procedure which requires surgical intervention within
approximately 4-6 hours of presentation. Urgent procedures are placed in an available time on
the OR schedule.

C. POLICY:

bA1.

1:2.
2-3.

4.5,

Any—eeEmergency—/—emergent—#u;gent—squqeaLpFeeedwes—Mu procedures will take priority

and will be performed before a scheduled procedure that is not in progress. The OR charge
nurse-/-Anesthesiologist running the schedule will advise the bumping surgeon of the affected
surgeon to be contacted, based on the criteria listed below.

When a surgeon deems to bump another surgical procedure, the bumping surgeon must

inform the affected surgeon of their intent.

The surgical case to be bumped will be determined by-the-bumping-surgeonby the OR Charge
Nurse and Anesthesiologist -based on the following criteria:

Time of case

Length of case

Condition of patient

Availability of equipment

Least disruptive to entire schedule

Date/time the case was scheduled (last scheduled may be bumped first)

g. Choosing of surgeons within the same group will not be a determining factor
Urgent procedures may require surgical intervention within a specific time period and may
require a scheduled procedure to be bumped.

Every effort will be made to accommodate the bumped procedure in a timely manner, and the
bumped procedure will take first priority for any open time.

"~ oo oW

44



Surgical Services Policy Manual
Bumping Surgery Procedures

Page 2 of 2

When a surgeon elects to bump hié/her own elective scheduled case, the bumped case will be
placed in the order to be rescheduled based on availability of rooms and staff to accommodate
the case.

Disagreement between surgeons in the above process will be arbitrated by the OR Medical
Director, Chief of Surgery or Chief of Staff.

Requests for bumping may be referred to the and-the appropriate surgical Division for
review i i

45



%c} Tri-City Medical Canter
Oceanside, California

SURGICAL SERVICES

SUBJECT: DISASTER AND EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS

ISSUE DATE: 4/94
REVISION DATE(S): 2/05, 6/09, 11/10, 9/12, 5/15

Department Approval Date(s): 10/16
Operating Room Committee Approval Date(s): 10/16
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval Dates(s): n/a

Medical Executive Committee Approval Date(s): 01/17

Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s):
Board of Directors Approval Date(s):

A. POLICY:
1. To provide guidelines for Perioperative Services (Pre-op Education, Pre-op Hold/SPRA, OR

and PACU) personnel in the event of a disaster.
2. To mamtam adequate avanlabnllty of personnel and supplles durmg a disaster.

C.B. PROCEDURE:
1+—LEVEL |l —Internal-Disaster
1. Due to the varying types and magnitudes of emergency events, Tri-City Healthcare
District (TCHD) has adopted the command structure of Hospital Incident Command
System (HICS). Once the decision has been made to activate the disaster plan, the HICS
becomes the standard operating procedure. The complete plan is located in the TCHD
Disaster Plan Manual located in each department.

2. French Rooms 1 and 2 are designated as the Incident Command Center (ICC).
C. NOTIFICATION:
1. In the event of a disaster (Code Orange or Code Yellow), departments will be notified via
the overhead paging system.
2. Management staff is to be notified by their respective area lead staff via pager/phone 24

hours per day, 7 days per week.

46



Surgical Services Policy & Procedure Manual

Disaster and Emergency Preparedness

Page20of 5

3.

Manager/Supervisor/designee responsibilities following the activation plan for a disaster

or drill:
a. The Surgical Services Clinical Manager(s)/designee from their respective areas
will:
i. Review the HICS form, located in the disaster manual
ii. Assess number of patients currently in department(s)
iiii. Assess anticipated time of discharge from departments
iv. Assess number of available staff
V. Complete HICS form and submit to the incident Command Center.
b. Dependent upon the type and severity of the disaster, the Incident Command

Center may direct the departments to:

i
ii.
iiii.
iv.
V.

Vi.

Delay or cancel elective surgeries/procedures

Discharge patients

Call in on-call staff

Initiate the disaster recal!l list

Post Anesthesia Care Unit may be directed to discharge all patients
capable of returning to the nursing units, and clearing this department for
holding area of disaster victims if necessary.

OR staff will obtain emergency case carts and pick extra supplies for
emergency procedures:

1) Extra Lap, Chest, and Extremity custom packs

2) Six (6) extra cases of Laps and 4x4 sponges

3) IV solutions and tubing
4) Blood administration sets
5) Irrigation: water and saline

6) Antibiotics
7) Morgue packs

Employee’s Responsibilities:

a. Employees at work but away from the department are to return immediately to
their home department.
b. In the event that the department is in the location of the disaster, employees will
report to the Labor Pool.
c. Personnel will take direction from the OR/PACU Clinical Managers/designee in
each area.
i. Operating Room:
1) Registered Nurses will circulate/scrub with surgical procedures,
picking of supplies and instruments of following cases.
2) Anesthesia technician will assist anesthesiologist with line
placement and intubations as directed.
3) OR Technicians will scrub surgical cases or assist with instrument
processing and running errands.
4) Endoscopy Suite personnel will assist with minor surgical care and
in Pre-Op holding area.
5) Perioperative Aides will assist with transporting patients from the

ER and discharging cancelled elective surgical patients, as well as
routine duties of cleaning.

6) OR Secretaries will answer the telephones, take messages, and run
errands as needed.

Post Anesthesia Care Unit:

1) Registered Nurses will assist with the delayed surgery patients.
Some of these patients may require resuscitation or monitoring.
They will also assist in ICU nursing units if patients are sent directly
back, bypassing PACU if staffing allows.

47



Surgical Services Policy & Procedure Manual
Disaster and Emergency Preparedness

Page 3 of 5
2) Acute Care Technicians (ACTs) will assist with transporting patients
and patient care as directed.

D. EVACUATION OF THE OPERATING ROOM:

1. In the event the Surgical Services is directed to evacuate:
a. Evacuation routes are posted in each specific department
b. Hallways are to be cleared, moving any carts/equipment to the closest storage

areas.
i. Storage Room 1 and 2
il Dirty Utility Room

iii. Case Cart Room

iv. Back hallway by the windows
V. Any open Operating Room
vi. Forensic Pre-Op Hold




Surgical Services Policy & Procedure Manual
Disaster and Emergency Preparedness
Page 4 of §




Surgical Services Policy & Procedure Manual
Disaster and Emergency Preparedness
Page 5of 5

50



@ Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

SURGICAL SERVICES

SUBJECT: OPERATING ROOM (OR) COMMITTEE

ISSUE DATE: 4/94

REVISION DATE(S): 1/05, 6/09, 10/12, 5/15; 11/15

Department Approval Date(s): 10/16
Operating Room Committee Approval Date(s): 10/16
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval Dates(s): n/a

Medical Executive Committee Approval Date(s): 01/17

Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s):
Board of Directors Approval Date(s):

A. OPERATING ROOM COMMITTEE:

1. Existence

a.

b.

f.

The chairperson of the Operating Room Committee will be either the chief of surgery or
chief of anesthesia, alternating each fiscal year.

Members shall consist of Pphysicians representation from- Aanesthesia, Ssurgical
Ssub-specialities, P—penoperatlve Nnursmg Lleadershlp and Aadmmlstratlon a

The committee shall functlon asa llalson between epepahng—FeemPerloperatlve

Services and the Mmedical Staffstaff and shall:

i. Conduct periodic review of operational policies (i.e., scheduling of elective and
emergency cases)

i. Review incidents and adverse events

ii. Review problems with the daily management of the Operating Room schedule

iv. Reviews block time utilization

V. Review late surgeons for appropriate sanctions

The committee shall meet monthly in addition to any meetings called by the committee

chair.

The chair of the committee with input from the Director of Surgical Services/designee

and OR Medical Director -OR-surgeons-and-anesthesia-department develops the

meeting agenda formation-

Documentation of the minutes is dene-by-theforwarded to the -mMedical sStaff eOffice

and must-be-approved by the Medical Executive Committee and Board of Directors.

2. Responsibility

a.

All surgical and anesthesia services are coordinated by the Operating Room Committee
through the development of policies and protocols relating to the functioning of the
Operating Room, Post-Anesthesia Care Unit (PACU), and Anesthesia Depariment.
These are coordinated in conjunction with administration and are reviewed annualiyat
least every three years.

The Committee hasdetermines-inputinte-the OR +eem-availability requirements to
meet the needs of the communlty

B. EXTERNAL COMMITTEES:
1. Ihe—QpeFat-mg—ReemPerloperatlve Services- is represented on select hospital level
committees in order to link surgical/anesthesia activities with other hospital-wide critical

51



Surgical Services Policy Manual
| OR Commitiee 7420-106
Page 2 of 2

situations. The following lists these external committees and addresses the Operating
Room/external group interactions.

b-a. Cllmcal Value Analys:s Team (CVAT)
i. The OR Materials Manager, OR Manager -and the Sterile Processing
Department (SPD) Operations Manager are members of this committee, which
reviews products for the entire facility for compatlblllty cost effectlveness etc.

&b. Infectlon Control
i. The Director for Surgical Services and SPD Manager are-is-a-members of the
Infection Control committee, which reviews hospital-wide infection control issues.

i. The Director of Surgical Services attends this committee, which reviews
Quality Initiatives and Outcomes.

52



Tri-City Miedical Center
Oceanside, California

DELETE - Content added to
“Admission/Discharge
Criteria” or covered in other

SURGICAL SERVICES policies

| SUBJECT: PRE-OPERATIVE REQUIREMENTS

ISSUE DATE: 6/09

REVISION DATE(S): 10/12; 4/15

Department Approval Date(s): 10/16

Operating Room Committee Approval Date(s): 10/16

Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval Dates(s): n/a
| Medical Executive Committee Approval Date(s): 01/17

Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s):
Board of Directors Approval Date(s):




Page-3-of3




95



DELETE - Content covered in
Patient Care Services Policy:
Safe Medical Device Act
Tracking and Reporting

SUBJECT: SAFE MEDICAL DEVICE ACT: TRACKING & REPORTING

ISSUE DATE:  4/94
REVISION DATE(S): 2/05; 6/09

Department Approval Date(s): 10/16
Operating Room Committee Approval Date(s): 10/16
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval Dates(s): n/a

Medical Executive Committee Approval Date(s): 01/17

Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s):
Board of Directors Approval Date(s):




57



,‘.:,:)
@5‘2) Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

SURGICAL SERVICES

SUBJECT: SCHEDULING SURGICAL PROCEDURES RO MIIBER—120.900

ISSUE DATE: 04/94
REVISION DATE(S): 09/99; 04/01; 01/02; 06/03; 02/05; 02/08; 06/09; 11/10; 10/12; 12/12; 04/13; 08/13; 5/15

REVIEW DATE (S): 12/05; 12/07

Department Approval Date(s): 08/16
Department of Anesthesiology Approval Date(s): n/a
Operating Room Committee Approval Date(s): 08/16
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval Date(s): n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval Date(s): 01/17
Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s):

Board of Directors Approval Date(s): 01/13

A. PURPOSE:

1. To provide scheduling guidelines for surgery, -ard-endoscopy, and elective cesarean sections

(in OB-OR).
B. DEFINITIONS:

1. Add-On Cases: Additions to the surgery schedule after the “final schedule” has been
published. The “final schedule” is published by 4 PM for the next day.

2. Elective Case: Surgery can be scheduled at the time best suited for the surgeon and the
patient.

3. Urgent Case: Surgical intervention is needed within 4-6 hours of presentation. Urgent
procedures are placed in an available time on the OR schedule.

4, Emergent Case: Surgical intervention is needed within one hour of presentation and may
require that another scheduled or add-on case is bumped.

5. Emergency: Surgical intervention is needed immediately upon presentation to preserve life or

limb. Emergency procedures are performed in the first available operating room and may
require that another scheduled or add-on case is bumped.

C. SCHEDULING WEEKDAY ELECTIVE CASES:

1. Al elective surglcal and endoscoplc procedures and elective cesarean sections in OB-OR
will be scheduled through the ©RSurgery -scheduling office-er-OR-main-desk.

2. There are 12 rooms in the TCMC OR suite which are utilized as follows:
a. Ten (10) operating rooms (OR 1-10) can accommodate any type of case.
b. OR 5 and 6 are set up and primarily are used for cardiac cases.

i OR 5 is released for non-cardiac cases at 24 hours
il. OR 6 is held for cardiac cases

C. OR 11 is the Cystoscopy Room and is considered a wound class Il room. Only certain
procedures may be performed in this room due to the open drain:
i. Circumcision
ii. Endourology procedures
iisili.  Percutaneous Subprapubic Cystotomy
iv. Vasectomy

fikv.  Orchiectomy
d. OR 12 is the Gl/Pulmenary Endoscopy Room

58



Surgical Services Policy Manual
| Scheduling Surgical Procedures 7420-409

Page2 of 5
3.

4-5.

6-9.
#10.

Expected Aavailable surgery rooms Monday-FridayThursday (may fluctuate based on

staffing, surgical volume and surgical acuity):

a. 0730-1500 hours: 8 rooms

b. 1500-1900 hours: 5 rooms

C. 1900-2100 hours: 3 rooms

d. 2100-2300 hours: 2 rooms

Expected available surgery rooms on Friday (may fluctuate based on staffing, surgical

volume and surgical acuity):

a. 0730-1500 hours: 7 rooms

b. 1500-1900 hours: 4 rooms

c. 1900-2100 hours: 3 rooms

d. 2100-2300 hours: 2 rooms

Elective Ccases shall be scheduled by the surgery scheduling office between the hours of

8:35AMO0835 and 4:36PM1630, Monday through Friday, at 760-940-7382.

a. Elective cases are performed Monday through Friday from 071530 (081530 on
Thursday) to 2300 hours. Elective cases should not extend beyond 2300.

Start Times:

a. The Start time of a procedure (time on the OR schedule) is the time the patient is
expected to be in the OR. Start time of first cases are tracked and report to the OR
committee monthly.

b. The start time of elective or add-on case requested for 1600 or later cannot be
guaranteed. In those instances, the surgeon’s preferred start time will be noted,
and the surgeon will be given one hour’s notice of expected start time. If the
surgeon cannot start at the expected time, the next surgeon to start will be offered
the time.

Delays:
a. Surgeons who notify the OR they wiil be late for their scheduled start time must

provide an expected time of arrival. Delays of more than 30 minutes, or delays
that will impact another surgeon’s schedule will cause the first surgeon to be
bumped back to the next available start time.

b. Surgeons who are not in house 30 minutes past the scheduled time of surgery
and are unable to be contacted will be bumped back to the next available start
time once they either arrive at the hospital or contact the OR

Cases are scheduled ona consecutlve fi rst-come first-served baS|s or in a surgeon’s block

time.
Procedures may be scheduled by the surgeon or the surgeon’s office staff only.

The process for scheduling an elective caseinformation-required-at-the-time-of scheduling is

as follows:

a. The surgeon’s office shalls calls the TCMC Surgery Scheduling department to
reserve a case time.

b. The surgeon’s office shall completes a written “TCMC Surgery Scheduling Patient

Information” booking form and faxes to the TCMC Surgery department fax server

(Fax # 760-940-71 38) within 48 hours of the telephone reservation.

i Upon receiving the written booking form, the TCMC Surgery Scheduler will
schedule the case, obtain a FIN# and book a Pre-Operative Education
appointment.

ii. The TCMC Surgery Scheduler will write the FIN# and the date and time of
the Pre-Operative Education appointment on the “TCMC Surgery
Scheduling Patient Information” booking form, and will fax the form back to
the surgeon’s office as confirmation.

c. The surgeon’s office enters electronic orders or shall faxes written orders to the

TCMC Surgery Scheduling department fax server at least one week prior to

surgery date. Electronic orders will also be accepted.

59



Surgical Services Policy Manual
| Scheduling Surgical Procedures 7420-408

i If the case is scheduled less than one week prior to the date of surgery,
written or electronlc orders are required by the next business day.

Page 3 of 5

25 ASfhclasslarll
11.  Age/Weight/ASA Requirements:
a. Surgery patients must be at least 14 years of age at the time of surgery
b. Adolescent patients (ages 14-18) must be:
i At least 80 Ibs
ii. ASAclassiorli
c. Adult Patients (over age 18) must be at least 80 Ibs.
d. Any requested Adolescent or Adult patient who does not meet criteria must be
rev:ewedlapproved prlor to schedulmg by the Chlef of AnestheSIa or designee.

12. The surgeon must have the appr'opriate privileges granted to be allowed to schedule a

procedure.
a. Current privilege lists are maintained through the E-PRIV system, accessible through

TCMC Intranet.
eb. If the physician’s privilege status is still not clear, the Medical Staff Office is contacted for

clarification.

D. PRE-OPERATIVE EDUCATION APPOINTMENT SCHEDULING GUIDELINES:
1. Patients may be scheduled for a telephone vs. in-person Pre-Operative Education

appointment.

60



Surgical Services Policy Manual
| Scheduling Surgical Procedures 7420-168

Page 4 of 5
2.

1.
2.

3.

1.

9:2.

40-3.

Those patients who do not need to be scheduled for regular teaching include:
a. Debilitated patients

b. Nursing home patients

c. Requests from physician’s office if HMO is doing blood work and the patient has a
transportation problem

d. Patients who are rescheduled for surgery and have already attended a Pre-

Operative Education appointment

E. SCHEDULING ADD-ON URGENT, EMERGENT, OR EMERGENCY PROCEDURES:

Urgent, Emergent, and Emergency cases may be performed at any time.

Urgent, Emergent, and Emergency cases shall be scheduled through the Main OR desk
in person or via telephone (760-940-5400).

Required information when scheduling an add-on case includes:

a. Patient name, date of birth, age, and medical record number

b. Patient phone number, Social Security number, and insurance information
(excludes in-house patients)

Patient current location in the hospital

NPO status

Pre-Op diagnosis and Procedure to be performed

Surgeon and assistant (if applicable)

Equipment/X-ray needed

Relevant cardiac/medical history

Time of surgeon availability

mFa@me o

F.  WEEKEND/HOLIDAY CASES:

Saturday, Sunday and three recognized Monday Holidays (President's Day, Memorial Day and
Labor Day) have two rooms available for Add-on and Urgent cases 0730-1530. After 4 PM
only one room is available. -A-third-room-is-available for-emergency-cases-only-In addition,
one room is available for emergency cases only.

b:a. The heart room counts as one of the available rooms.

The remaining holidays (July 4, Thanksgiving, Christmas, New Year’s Day) have one urgent

room and one emergent room only. No elective surgeries are scheduled on these holidays.

Weekend/holiday cases are scheduled no more than 24 hours prior to the day of surgery.

Add-on cases are started in order of scheduling, providing the surgeon is available and the

patient is ready for surgery.

If the first scheduled add-on case cannot be performed in the first available time, the next case’s

surgeon will be contacted and offered to start at the available time. Upon availability of the next

time to start an add-on case, the surgeon for the first case will again be contacted and offered
the time.

a. The first available time is 071530. If a physician requests a specific time, eg, 0900
to start a case, then another physician is available to start at 071530, the physician
requesting the 0900 start time will be contacted to move up to 071530, or will start
after the preceding case is finished.

For 0715 cases, the patient must be ready for transfer to the Operating Suite by 0645,

otherwise, the next scheduled case may replace the delayed case

When the first Saturday/Sunday room is booked for three hours or more, the second room is

opened. The surgeon following the 071530 slot in the first room will be offered the 07150730

slot in the newly available room.

Surgeons are allowed to schedule no more than ONE elective procedure, no greater than

three hours, per weekend.

a. Scheduling questions for weekend electives are decided by the 1% call
Anesthesiologist.
b. Robotic Cases (Mazor or daVinci) are not scheduled for weekends or holidays

61



Surgical Services Policy Manual
| Scheduling Surgical Procedures 7420-108

Page 50f 5
| B:G. ENDOSCOPY:
1. Endoscopy services are available 24/7.
2, Endoscopy procedures are scheduled in the same manner as surgical procedures.
23. Endoscopic procedures requiring general anesthesia are scheduled in an open time on

the OR schedule.

62



%1)} Ti-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

SURGICAL SERVICES

SUBJECT: SCOPE OF SERVICE FOR SURGICAL SERVICES

ISSUE DATE: 10/11

REVISION DATE(S): 12/11; 10/12; 5/15

Department Approval Date(s): 10/16
Operating Room Committee Approval Date(s): 10/16
Pharmacy & Therapeutics Committee Approval Dates(s): n/a

Medical Executive Committee Approval Date(s): 01/17
Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s):
Board of Directors Approval Date(s):

A PURPOSE:

1. To describe the Scope of Service for the department of Surgical Services at Tri-City Medical
Center, including Pre-operative Education, Pre-operative Hold (POH), Surgery and Endoscopy.

B. POLICY:
1. Goals

a. To improve the general health and well-being of patients who require surgical care.

b. To improve patients’ health knowledge related to pre-operative preparation, the
scheduled surgical procedure, and post-operative plan for patients requiring surgical
care.

C. To reduce and manage complications and unexpected outcomes.

d. To continuously evaluate and improve the services provided.

2. Description of Service & Assessing Department Services

a. The department of surgical services provides diagnostic, therapeutic and operative
interventions for patients requiring a variety of surgical procedures 24 hours a day, 7
days a week.

b. Assessment activities include pre-operative, intra-operative and post-operative patient
care for persons requiring elective, urgent or emergent surgery.

C. The Pre-operative Education department provides instructions to patients electively
scheduled for procedures sregarding preparation for surgery, surgical procedures and
post-operative care, facilitates ordered laboratory and diagnostic procedures as part of
the pre-operative patient preparation, and gathers patient health history information.
Pre-operative Education appointments are conducted in-person or via telephone,
Monday-Friday 8:00am-5:00pm.

d. The Pre-operative Hold department is responsible for assessing patients prior to surgery

and carrying out pre-operative orders. POH is staffed with RN’s Monday-Friday 5:30am-
5.00pm. After hours, the surgical RN is responsible for assessing patients pre-
operatively and completing pre-operative orders.

3. Methods Used To Assess Patient Needs

a.

Patient health history and educational needs related to the surgical procedure and post-
operative care are assessed by a Pre-operative Education Registered Nurse (RN) during

the Pre-operative Education appointment (as applicable)-.
Patients are assessed and prepared for surgery by a POH-perioperative RN on -n-the

pre-operative-area-on-the day of surgery. Pre-operative-orders-are-carried-outin-this
area-priorto-going-to-the Operating Room-

63



Surgical Services Policy Manual
Scope of Practice for Surgical Services

Page 2 of 3

C. Patient assessment is performed by a surgical Registered Nurse (RN) and anesthesia
care provider (if applicable) in-the-Pre-operative-area-prior to going to
surgery/Endoscopy suite.

d. Ongoing patient assessment and care is performed by the circulating RN and anesthesia
care provider in the surgical suite throughout the procedure. RN's may monitor patients
and administer moderate sedation for appropriate procedures (including Endoscopy

procedures).
Scope of Services
a. Service specialties include orthopedic, thoracic, vascular, neurosurgical, urologic,

gynecological, anesthesia, plastics, otolaryngolic, ophthalmologic, oral surgery,
endoscopic, cardiac, robotic and general surgery.

b. There are 12 rooms in the OR suite, including 10 operating rooms (1-10) that can
accommodate any type of case, a cystoscopy a-cystescepy-suite (OR #11) and an
Endoscopy suite (OR #12).

c. Patients are discharged from the Operating Room by the surgeon and/or

anesthesiologist upon completion of the surgical procedure, and admitted to the
appropriate postoperative level of care.

d. The Pre-operative Hold department, located in the surgical pavilion, contains patient -85
bays, with additional access to two private cubicles located in the Post-Anesthesia Care
Unit (PACU). A Preoperative Hold area with six bays is available for elective
admission of Forensic patients. POH services inpatients, outpatients and AM
admissions for all surgical specialties and Endoscopy.

e. The Pre-operative Education department services electively scheduled outpatients and
AM admissions for all surgical specialties-including-patients undergeing-Cesarean
soctions:

Staffing and Availability of Staff

a. Sufficient staffing is maintained at all times in terms of number of personnel, skill mix,

and competency to meet the needs of the patients in the OR. Standby and call-back will
be utilized to additionally staff those shifts that have minimal staffing in-house.

b. Each patient is assigned at least two surgical team members, one of which is the RN
circulator.

C. The Assistant Nurse Manager (ANM) or charge nurse will make staff assignments
according to individual staff competencies and patient needs.

d. Procedures requiring additional resources, due to severity of illness of the patient or
complexity of the procedure, shall be staffed with additional personnel as appropriate.

e. For complete staffing and on-call guidelines see Surgical Services Policiesy #7420-203:
Staffing, ##420-104: Admission/Discharge Criteria and #7420-201: On-call.

f. Pre-operative Education appointments are conducted by RN’s. Appointments are

scheduled in advance by the surgery schedulers PFS—epeFaiéNe-Eduea%len-alse-hasa

g. Pre-operative Hold departments isare staffed with RN's during normal business hours.
After hours, the surgical RN conducts the pre-operative patient assessment and
preparation.

Patient Population

a. EedrameAdolescent adult, and geriatric patlents requmng surgical management.

a = gery-may-be-perormedor r-agePatients between the ages

of 14-18 must meet defmed criteria set forth in Surgical Services Policy #7420-109:

Schedulmg Surglcal Procedures

3

Extent to Which The Department s Level of Care/Servrce Meet Patrent Needs

64



Surgical Services Policy Manual
Scope of Practice for Surgical Services

| 7420-140
Page 30of 3

a. The services provided by surgical services meet the needs of both inpatients and
outpatients through availability of staff who are competent to provide service for the
current patient population.

8. Performance Improvement (P!)

a. In order to improve patient care, several indicators are monitored tereperted-quarteriy-to
Quality-Contrel-Council-and reported to the OR Committee, Infection Control
Committee, Quality Committee or other committees as requested.

b. PI data is posted |n the department

c.

9. Standards of Practlce

a. Surgical Services follows practice recommendatlons as outllned in the Assomahon of
PeriOperative Registered Nurses (AORN) : F
Practices-Guidelines for Perioperative Practice

b. The nursing service abides by regulations of California Title XXII, Joint Commission
guidelines, CMS and the Board of Registered Nursing.

C. See Surgical Services Policy #7420-506:-Perioperative Standards of Practice.

10. Medication Administration Standards Related to Care of The Patient

a. Medications, general and narcotics, are dispensed via the Pyxis system. Emergency
cardiac medications are stored in Cardiac OR Suites in locked cabinets and refrigerator.
Medications requiring refrigeration are stored at the appropriate temperature.

b. Anesthesia Pyxis machines are maintained in each OR suite.

C. Preoperative antibiotics and medications dispensed to and/or administered on the
surgical field during the surgical procedure are documented in the surgical nursing
record.

d. Anesthesia providers are responsible for documenting all meds they administer on the
Anesthesia record.

e. Medications administered in POH are documented in the electronic Medication.

Administration Record (MAR)-fer-inpatients-and-AM-admissionsand-onthe
paper-char-forouipatients:

f. See Surgical Services Policy-#7420-408: Medications in Surgery.

C. RELATED DOCUMENTS:
1. Surgical Services Policy: Admission/Discharge Criteria
4:2. Surgical Services Policy: On-call
3. Surgical Services Policy: Scheduling Surgical Procedures
4. Surgical Services Policy: Staffing

65



=)
@‘3} Tri-City Medical Center

Oceanside, California

TELEMETRY UNIH-SPECIFIC-ROLICY MANUAL

SUBJECT: Assignments for:- Telemetry Core Staff & POl MR Ere e 80102
Acute Care Services (ACS) and-Resource-Staff
Floating to Telemetry

ISSUE DATE: 10/96
REVISION DATE(S): 10-12, 4-13.4/15

Department Approval Date(s):

Division of Cardiology Approval Date(s): n/a
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval Date(s): n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval Date(s):
Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s):

Board of Directors Approval: 02/11

A. PURPOSE:

1. To outline the Registered Nurse (RN) and Advanced Care Technician (ACT) patient assignments
and responsibilities on the Telemetry Unit.

2. To outline the patient assignments and responsibilities of TCMC staff floating to the Telemetry
Unit.

B. DEFINITIONS:
1. Core Telemetry Staff: RNs or ACTs hired as staff for the Telemetry Unit and/or resource staff
identified by the Telemetry ASS|stant Nurse Manager (ANM)
2. Acute Care Staff (ACS): CS-sia
and-ACTs: staff hired on an ACS unit.

C. POLICY
1. Assignments

a. Each unit will be assigned the appropriate RN staff based on TCMC's staffing guidelines.

b. An ACTs shall be assigned based on unit staffing guidelines.
i. ACTs duties shall be assigned by the RN. Refer to the ACT Shift Routines

C. Each nurse shall be assigned a maximum of 4 (four) patients.

d. Each unit shall have an assigned Resource Nurse. The Resource Nurse shall be a core
Telemetry RN or RN assigned by the ANM/Relief Charge Nurse (RCN):

e, The Resource Nurse shall ensure appropriate assignments are made based on the
Synergy Model.
i. Assignments may be changed throughout the shift based upon the Synergy Model

and patient acuity.

i. The Telemetry Admission and Discharge Criteria shall serve as a reference.

f. The ANM/Relief Charge NurseGN-may make changes to the assignment as necessary to
ensure the assigned nurse competencies meet the patient’s characteristics and needs.

g. The following patients shall be assigned to Telemetry core RNs and core Intensive Care

Unit (ICU) RN floating to Telemetry:

i. Pre and post cardiovascular surgery

ii. Immediate post Percutaneous Coronary Intervention (PCI) patients with femoral
arterial and/or venous sheaths post coronary cardiac catheterization 12 hours or
less

fii. Immediate post PCI without femoral and/or venous sheaths 12 hours or less

66



Patient Care-SerdsesTelemetry Manual

Telemetry=-Assignments

Page 2 of 4

iv. Patient requiring invasive line monitoring; femoral or radial arterial sheath
monitoring, and/or central venous pressure (CVP) monitoring

V. Patients requiring application of a FemoStop after losing hemostasis

vi. Patients requiring removal of a FemoStop

vii. Patients requiring transcutaneous pacing

viii.  Patients with dysrhythmias requiring the initiation, loading, or maintenance of IV

antiarrhythmic drugs, IV calcium channel blockers and/or IV beta-blockers to
decrease a tachycardia, or patients requiring vasoactive drips.

iX. Immediate post conscious sedation for bedside procedures
X. Carotid Endarterectomy

xi. Ventilated endotracheal tube or tracheostomy patients

xii. Ventilator dependent

Xiii. Patients requiring Bi-PAP

3:2,

Acute Care Serwces (ACS)

a.

RNs floating to Telemetry from Acute Care Services (ACS) ard-resource-nurses-who have
not completed the Telemetry or ICU Skills Checklist and/or the Telemetry or ICU skills lab
cannot be assigned total responsibility for patient care |nc|ud|ng duties and responsibilities
for plannlng and |mplement|ng patient care, and
unlicensed nursing personnel” (Board of
Registered Nursing (BRN), 1998).
RNs floating to Telemetry from ACS;+eseurces-RNs whose primary floating pod is not
Telemetry and registry medical surgical nurses patient assignments and responsibilities
may include but are not limited to the following:
i. RNs shall receive patient assignments based on their clinical competency on ACS.
ii. Assignments will be modified throughout a shift based on patient acuity and
Telemetry unit specific criteria for assigning patients to ACS and registry nurses.
iii. RNs—RNs “may accept a limited assignment of nursing care duties, which utilizes
his/her currently existing clinical competence” (BRN, 1998).
RNs shall perform “duties and responsibilities for which their competency has been
validated” (BRN, 1998) by the following:
i. ACS per their unit specific skills checklist
. Registry per their agency skills checklist
RNs shall implement interventions within their scope of practice on ACS
RNs may not institute care, administer [V medications, or accept orders from physician
that are not within their ACS scope of practice and/or orders that may not be received or
implemented on ACS.
RNs may not implement Standardized Procedures, policies or procedures, which are
specific to the Telemetry unit.
RNs shall consult with a core Telemetry RN-Resource- RN, or ANM/RCN when the
following occurs:
i. Receive report on a new admission or transfer to unit
i. Changes in patient status from initial assessment or information obtained during
hand-off.
ii. Cardiac rhythm, rate, or vital sign changes

67



Patient Care-ServisesTelemetry Manual

Telemetry-Assignments
Page 3 of 4

iv. New orders to initiate procedures i.e., BiPAP, cardioversions, bronchoscopy,
insertion of chest tube, pre-operative teaching for cardiovascular surgery, cardiac
catheterization, insertion of pacemaker or implanted cardioverter defibriliator.

4:3.  Orders to implement, initiate, or maintain IV a RNs floating to Telemetry from Acute Care
Services (ACS) and-reseuree-purses-who have not completed the Telemetry or ICU Skills
Checklist and/or the Telemetry or ICU skills lab “cannot be assigned total responsibility for patient

care mcludlng duties and responSlbllltles for plannlng and |mplement|ng patient care, and
‘ VNs-and unlicensed nursing

personnel" (Board of Reglstered Nursmg (BRN) 1998).

84. RNs floating to Telemetry from ACS;+eseurces-RNs whose primary floating pod is not telemetry
and registry medical surgical nurses patient assignments and responsibilities may include but are
not limited to the following:

a. RNs shall receive patient assignments based on their clinical competency on ACS.

b. Assignments will be modified throughout a shift based on patient acuity and Telemetry
unit specific criteria for assigning patients to ACS and registry nurses.

c. RNs “may accept a limited assignment of nursing care duties, which utilizes his/her
currently existing clinical competence” (BRN, 1998).

d. RNs shall perform “duties and responsibilities for which their competency has been

validated” (BRN, 1998) by the following:
i. ACS per their unit specific skills checklist
ii. Registry per their agency skills checklist
RNs shall implement interventions within their scope of practice on ACS
RNs may not institute care, administer IV medications, or accept orders from physician
that are not within their ACS scope of practice and/or orders that may not be received or
implemented on ACS.
g. RNs may not implement Standardized Procedures, policies or procedures, which are
specific to the Telemetry unit.
h. RNSs shall consult with a core Telemetry RN,-Resource-RN.or ANM/relief charge nurse
when the following occurs:
i. Receive report on a hew admission or transfer to unit
ii. Changes in patient status from initial assessment or information obtained during

S0

hand-off.
ii. Cardiac rhythm, rate, or vital sign changes
iv. New orders to initiate procedures i.e., BiPAP, cardioversions, bronchosocpy,

insertion of chest tube, pre-operative teaching for cardiovascular surgery, cardiac
catheterization, insertion of pacemaker or implanted cardioverter defibrillator.

V. Orders to implement, initiate, or maintain IV antidysrhythmics or IV vasoactive
medications, or any medications that cannot be administered on ACS.

vi. Discharge of patient’s with the following admitting diagnoses without consulting a
core Telemetry nurse or ANM/RCN:
1) Heart failure
2) Acute Myocardial Infarction (Ml)
3) Post PCl
4) Post CVS

vii. Antidysrhythmics or IV vasoactive medications or any medications that cannot be
administered on ACS.

viii. Discharge of patient’s with the following admitting diagnoses without consulting a
core Telemetry nurse or ANM/Charge Nurse:
1) Heart failure
2) Acute Ml
3) Post PCI
4) Post CVS

8-5. Registry Nurses

68



Patient Care-ServicesTelemetiy Manual

Telemetry-Assignments

Page 4 of 4

a.

It is the responsibility of the registry RN to notify the Telemetryreseurse RN, ANM and/or
the relief charge nurse of their skills prior to accepting an assignment or implementing
interventions.

Registry staff shall receive patient assignments as outlined for ACS.

Registry staff may not be assigned the following patients post cardiovascular surgery, post
cardiac catheterization, ventilator assisted, or patients as identified by an ANM.

Registry staff may not be assigned total responsibility to provide interventions outside of
their agency’s skills checklist.

Registry Certified Nursing Assistant will be assigned task within their skill set for all
Telemetry patients.

D. EXTERNAL LINKS:
California Board of Registered Nursing (BRN). Retrieved from
http:/lwww.rn.ca.gov/regulations/rn.shtml

1.

a.

oaovT

California Nursing Practice Act: Scope of Regulation. Business and Professional Code
Division 2, Chapter 6. Article 2

RN Responsibility when Floating to New Patient Care Unit or Assigned to New Population
Standards of Competent Performance

Unlicensed Assistive Personnel

Abandonment of Patients

69



i D .
@‘c’} Tri-City Medical Center

DELETE — no longer required

Distribution:

Women and Newborn Services

PROCEDURE:

Purpose:

Supportive Data:

Equipment:

Clipisal PetlontCore Pharmacy & Medical Professional Board of
ReviewRevist | policies-& Quality D on | Therapeutics |  Executive Affalrs Directors
Precceusss Ceorambdes Committee Committee Committee Approval
8/96; 2/99;
4/00; 3/03; n/a nla 8/09, 08/16 11/16 0117 7/03, 9/09
8/09, 05/16

70




Women and Newbom Services (WNS)
| Hydralazine Hydrochloride Administration
Page 2 of 3




Women and Newborn Services (WNS)
| Hydralazine Hydrochloride Administration
Page 30f 3

72



(%‘c’? Ti-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

WOMEN AND NEWBORN SERVICES POLICY MANUAL

ISSUE DATE:  10/94 SUBJECT: NEONATAL TEAM ATTENDANCE

AT DELIVERIES

REVISION DATE: 1/00, 6/03, 3/06, 9/09, 4/10

| Department Approval Date(s): 01/16
Division of Neonatology Approval Date(s): 08/16
Department of Pediatrics Approval Date(s): 1116
Department of OB/GYN Approval Date(s): 12/16
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval Date(s): n/a
| Medical Executive Committee Approval: 05/1301/17
Professional Affairs Committee Approval: 06/13
Board of Directors Approval: 06/13
A POLICY:
1. The goals of neonatal resuscitation include rapid assessment and stabilization of the newborn’s
| airway, breathing and circulation (the-ABC’s) as well as the stabilization of the thermal environment.
2. To the degree that all resuscitations can be anticipated, the guidelines for neonatal resuscitation as

put forth by the Neonatal Resuscitation Program (NRP) pregram-developed by the American
Academy of Pediatrics and the American Heart Association will apply to all impending deliveries in
the Women and Newborn Services (WNS) ‘s-and-Children’s-Center of Tri-City Medical Center.

3. Compliance with this policy is the responsibility of all health care providers in WNS Women's-and
Ghﬂdpen—s—Semees—and the Neonatal Intenswe Care Unit (NICU)

PURPOSE :
1. To provide guidelines-for NICU team attendance at deliveries for the resuscitation and

stabilization of the high risk newborn.

) Eor it et | ctabilization of the hiah-is) e,

EQUIPMENT:

1. Infant warmer

2. Resuscitation equipment

3. Warmed Blankets and towels

34. Warming Mattress if 35 weeks gestation and less;
A Touels

4:5. Neowrap (if lessthan-28 32 weeks gestation and less)
5.6. Stethoscope

6:7. Thermometer

7:8. Neonatal Crash Cart

8:9. Neonatal Transport Warmer

NEONATAL INTENSIVE CARE UNIT {NICU) RESUSCITATION TEAM ATTENDANCE AT
DELIVERIES:
1. The NICU resuscitation team will be present at the delivery of newbornsirfants with the following

risk factorsproblems:

73



Women and Newborn Services (WWNS)
Neonatal Team Attendance at Deliveries

Page 2of 3
|
2.
3.
4,
| 5
| E.

a. Anticipated delivery of 35 completed weeks (35 weeks 6 days) or less or more than 42
completed weeks gestation

b. Known or suspected congenital defects or chromosomal anomalies

c. Multiple gestations

d. Cesarean sections — Unscheduled;-Emergent, and/or with high risk indications not

limited to:
i Fetal Heart Rate Category lll strip tracing
ii. Prolapsed Cord suspicion
iil. Placental Abruption
a-iv. Uterine Rupture high+isk-as-defined-in-D-1-
d-e. Signs of fetal distress at the discretion of the Obstetrical (OB) providerebstetrician
f. Macrosomic fetus and/ or potential for shoulder dystocia
e-g. Atthe request of the labor and delivery (L&/D) Assistant Nurse Manger (ANM)/or
designee* in collaboration with the OB providerobstetrician.
The NICU resuscitation team shall consist of:

a. Neonatal Attending Physician (MD) or Neonatal Nurse Practitioner/ Allied Healthcare
Provider (AHP)

b. NICU nurse

C. Respiratory Care Practitioner

The composition of the NICU resuscitation team may vary according to special circumstances.
One member of the team must be skilled in neonatal intubation.

All team members must be currently trained in NRP (Neonatal-Resusecitation-Rrogram):

RESPONSIBILITIES OF L&/D AND NICU TEAM MEMBERS:

1.
2.

10.

16:11.
+H-12.
1213.

14,

The NICU resuscitation team shall be identified at the start of each shift.

The L&/D ANM or designee* shall provide the NICU ANM or designeez with updated
information regarding the status of high-risk patients that will require the presence of the NICU
resuscitation team at a delivery as indicated.

The OB provider Obstetrician{OB) and-or the L&/D nurse (in collaboration with the OB
provider) may request the presence of the NICU resuscitation team at birth.

When the request for the NICU resuscitation team is made the following information shall be
communicated, as available:

a. Whether the infant is yet delivered
b. The type of problem and estimated gestational age (if known)
C. The location

The L&/D or Nursery nurse shall be responsible for having the resuscitation supplies available in

the room.
The L&/D or Nursery nurse shall provide sufficient time for the NICU team to arrive and check

equipment as possible.

Management of the NICU resuscitation team shall belong to the neonatologist/AHP, and includes
coordination, performance, and delegation of activities.

For delivery of multiple gestations, the neonatologist shall determine the staffing and supplies
needed to ensure adequate neonatal care.

Upon arrival for the delivery the NICU resuscitation team shall identify themselves to the
patient/family and to the L&D team.

The neonatologist/AHP will ensure that there is communication with the parents and the L&D
team about the infant’s condition after delivery.

The assessment, care and evaluation of the infant shall be provided by the NICU resuscitation
team following the guidelines put forth in the NRP program.

The NICU nurse shall receive the ID bands from the L&D or Nursery nurse and place them on
the baby.

The NICU nurse will report off to the L&/D or Nursery nurse prior to leaving the birthing area.
At no time will a newborn be left without the presence of a nurse designated to provide care for

him/her.
74



Women and Newborn Services (WNS)
Neonatal Team Attendance at Deliveries
Page 30of 3

F. DOCUMENTATION:

1. Documentation of all assessments and interventions shall be completed by the NICU nurse
and/or licensed professional performing the interventions/-and-assessments prior o leaving the
birthing area on the newborn admission record and in the patient’s electronic medical
record, as appropriate.

2. The documentation shall include:

a. The time the NICU team arrived and The-timed-interventions-and who on the team
performed the interventions

b. The condition of the infant and response to interventions

a-c. Use of the Neonatal Resuscitation Record, if indicated

G. REFERENCES:
1. American Heart Association and American Academy of Pediatrics- (2016011)5). Part7:
Neonatal Rresuscitation 87" Ed. Washington, D.C., Library of Congress
2. American Academy of Pediatrics (2010). Special Report- Neonatal resuscitation: 2010
American Heart Association guidelines for cardiopulmonary resuscitation and emergency
cardiovascular care. Pediatrics, 126 (5), 1400-1411.

75



(@
%C‘ZS) Tri-City Medical Center
Oceanside, California

WOMEN-S AND NEWBORN SERVICES (WNS)

SUBJECT: STANDARDS OF CARE — NEWBORN'’S

ISSUE DATE: 06/14
REVISION DATE(S):

Department Approval Date(s): 07/16
Department of OB/GYN Approval Date(s): n/a
Division of Neonatology Approval Dates(s) 08/16
Department of Pediatrics Approval Date(s): 08/1311/16
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval Date(s): n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval Date(s): 01/17
Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s): 06/14
Board of Directors Approval Date(s): 06/14

A, PREAMBLE:

1.

Nursing practice in the care of Women’s and Newborn’s Services (WNS) is delivered in an
environment that respects the goals, preferences, and patient rights of the unique dyad of the
maternal-fetal unit and/or mother-baby couplet and the family from admission, through the
episode of care, to discharge. The Women and Newborn nursing staff shall use established
TCMC and unit specific policies and procedures, and shall adhere to the standards and
guidelines set forth by the California Nurse Practice Act, American Nurses Association (ANA),
Association of Women’s Health, Obstetrics and Neonatal Nurses (AWHONN), and National
Association of Neonatal Nurses (NANN). Couplet care is based on a philosophy that embraces
the family-s spiritual and cultural values, is ethically relevant and is grounded on evidence-based
practices.

A:B. DEFINITIONS:

Standards of Professional Nursing Practice-Care: “Authoritative statements of the duties that

all registered nurses, regardless of role, population or specialty are expected to perform
ompetently (Amerlcan Nurses Assoclatlon (ANA) 2010 p.2). by—whleh—the—nu,tsmg

1.

2:3.

Scope of Nursing Practice: “describes the who, what, where, when, why and how of
nursing practice. Each of these questions must be answered to provide a complete picture
of the dynamic and complex practice of nursing and its evolving boundaries and
membership (ANA, 2010)”.

Standards: “Authoritative statements defined and promoted by the profession by which
the quality of practice, service or education can be evaluated” (ANA, 2010, p. 67).

a. “Standards of care are Standards of Professional Nursing Practice.”

Nursing Process: “The essential core of practice for the Registered Nurse (RN) to deliver
holistic, patlent-focused care. The nursmg process as outlmed by the ANA 2016 includes




Women and Newborn Services (WNS)
Standards of Care - Newborns

Page 2 of 12
.
4-5.
5-6.
6-7.
B.

1.

a. Assessment: A systematic, dynamic way to collect and analyze data about a client
i.e., patient. Assessment includes not only physiological data, but also
psychologlcal sociocultural, spiritual, economic and life-style factors”. An

assessment lncludes subjectlve and objectlve data P-FGGGSS—b%W-hEh—me—Feg-I-S-teFSd

i Subjectlve-what the patlent says

iii. Objective-observation based on assessment findings

iii. Focused Assessment/Reassessment: A more specific generalized
assessment that focuses on the main items needed reassessed. This may be
documented as no change since last assessment. The items that may be
assessed are not all inclusive, but not limited to : sleep/alert status, cry
reflexes, tone, movement, respiratory symptoms, respirations, respiratory
pattern, room air/oxygen, abdominal description, skin color, skin
temperature and neonatal skin integrity.

b. Diagnosis: A nurses’ clinical judgment about the client’s response to actual or potential
health conditions or needs.

C. Outcomes/Planning: “Based on the assessment and diagnosis. Outcomes are
measurable and achievable short and long-range goals”. Measurable-expected;
€. Planning: (Care Plan i.e., Plan of Care): A comprehensive outline of care to be

delivered to attain expected outcomes.
e-d. Implementation: “Nursing care is implemented to the care plan. This is “continuity
of care” from the patlent durmg hospltallzatlon and in preparatlon for dlscharge

fe.

. mes-and the effectiveness of nursing
care. It isa process that mvolves contmuously evaluation of the patient and the
modifications to the Plan of Care”.

Patient: Recipient of nursing care.

Health Care Providers: Individuals with special expertise who provide healthcare services or

assistance to clients.

Significant Others: Family members and/or those significant to the client.

Reasonable and a Timely Manner: Defined as within 4 hours after completion of assessments

or care provided.

REGISTERED NURSES:

Use the nursing process to plan and provide individualized care to their patients. Nurses use the
theoretical and evidence-based knowledge of human experiences and responses to collaborate
with patient and her fetus or newborn to assess, diagnose, identify outcomes, plan, implement,
and evaluate care. Nursing interventions are intended to produce beneficial effects, contribute to
quality outcomes, and above all, do no harm. Nurses evaluate the effectiveness of their care in
relation to identified outcomes and use evidence-based practice to improve care (ANA, 2010).”

7



Women and Newbomn Services (WNS)
Standards of Care - Newboims

Page 3 of 12
C. WNS NEWBORN STANDARDS OF PRACTICE:
1. The resuits of care provided to the patient shall be continuously evaluated by the health care
team, while looking for opportunities to improve delivery and quality of care given.
2. A comprehensive and dynamic database shall be maintained on all patients admitted to the
hospital.
3. The patient can expect to have appropriate confidentiality maintained at all times.
4, The patient can expect that the RN shall ensure the optimal desired level of privacy.
5. The patient can expect that the RN shall collect initial objective data within established time
frames that reflect the gravity of his/her condition.
6. The patient can expect that the RN shall facilitate the availability of pertinent data and collaborate
with other members of the healthcare team to establish an integrated plan of care.
7. The identification and prioritization of the patient’s problems/needs shall be based on collected

data obtained from assessments, patient/parent interview, patient medical records, and from
other members of the healthcare team.

8. The patient can expect that the RN shall utilize collected data to individualize the plan of care.

9. The patient can expect that the RN shall establish the priority of problems/needs on an ongoing
basis according to the gravity of the patient’s condition.

10. An appropriate plan of care shall be formulated for each patient.

11. The plan of care will be implemented according to the priority of identified problems or needs.

12. The plan of care shall be developed with an understanding of the psychosocial needs of the
patient.

13. The patient can expect that there will be documentation of interventions related to the plan of care
and that this documentation will be part of the patient’s permanent medical record.

GENERAL NEWBORN NURSING ASSESSMENT:
1. Standards of Care: Vital Signs
a. Vital sings with the first 30 minutes of birth, at one hour, then every 30 minutes until 2

hours of age, upon transfer of care, then every 4 hours until 12 hours post-birth, then if
stable, every 6 hours until discharge with vital signs, prior to discharge per Patient Care
Services (PCS) procedure, Discharge of Patients, or per provider’s orders.

2. Vitals shall include:

Axillary temperature documented in Celsius.

Apical Heart Rate (AHR).Respiratory Rate (RR).

SpO,, prn spot check when clinically indicated.

Pain level.

=T

a.
b.
c.
d.

4:3. If mother and infant stable, vital signs will be assessed while infant is skin-to-skin or
breastfeeding within the first 30 minutes of birth, at one hour, then every 30 minutes until 2 hours
of age.

a. After two hours of age, the vitals will be taken every 4 hours until 12 hours post birth, then
if stable after the 12 hours, every 6 hours until discharge (unless condition warrants more
frequent vital signs or per provider order) and prior to discharge per Patient Care Services
(PCS) procedure, Discharge of Patients.

b. Any deviation of temperature, pulse, respirations and/or normail limits should warrant

reassessment within 30-60 minutes.

Notify provider if reassessment outside of normal limits.

Any deviation from normal limits warrants further assessments, documentation,

appropriate intervention and provider notification as needed.

Oximetry spot checks may be considered based on vital signs and clinical assessments.

Normal ranges for newborns after transition (a few hours after birth).

Temperature range: 97.5°F — 99.5°F (36.5°C - 37°5C).

Pulse range: 110-160 bpm (may be lower due to sleep status).

Respirations: 30-60 per minute (may be lower due to sleep status).

78

oo

TQ ™o



Women and Newborn Services (WNS)

Standards of Care - Newborns

Page 4 of 12
E. STANDARDS OF CARE: NEWBORN PAIN ASSESSMENT:
1. Assessment: Pain per Pain Management Policy
a. The Neonatal Infant Pain Scale (NIPS) is used for pain assessment of the neonate. The
infant shall be assess on a scoring system based on 5 parameters, (Behavioral and one
physiologic parameter):
i. Facial expression
i, Cry
iii. Breathing patterns
iv. Arms
V. Legs
vi. State of arousal
2. Pain assessment will be done on admission at the initial shift assessment with vital signs, and as
needed.

2:3. Patient may have fussiness due to delivery or handling versus pain. Reassessment does
not need to occur in these instances.
34. Pain will be assessed and assigned a score as follows:

a.

Assessment of Pain Intervention

No pain NIPS 0

Mild pain NIPS less than 2;-may-be-managed-with-non-pharmacologic

Mild to moderate pain

Moderate to severe
pain

STANDARDS OF CARE: INTAKE AND OUTPUT:

1. Intake and output shall be monitored as ordered and as follows:
a. Intake:
i. Encourage breastfeeding of the baby at least 8 to 12 times in a 24-hour period.
1) In the first 24-hours, infant may be sleepy and requirements and demands
may be less than the 8-12 feedings.
2) Evaluate and document LATCH assessment every shift until discharge.
3) A lactation consult is a separate evaluation and shall be assessed and

documented as needed and/or for mfants in the NICU.

Sewlees-léehey— Formula should only be glven per mother request orf
physician recommendation. Refer to Infant Feeding policy.
Output:
i. Urine — the baby should have:
1) 1 wet diaper in the first 24 hours.
2) 2 wet diapers on the second day of life.
3) 3-5 wetd diapers on the third-fifth day of life.
ii. Stooling:
4y——=Ensure the infant is passing meconium a minimum of 1 stool per day (3-4}




Women and Newborn Services (WNS)
Standards of Care - Newborns

Page 5 of 12

iii. Stools will change color, consistency, and texture after meconium passed on day
1-3 (green to yellow).

1) Breastfed infants may appear to have stool that is runny and seedy once
milk supply is in.
iv. Document number of wet and/or stooled diapers per shift.
V. Document color and consistency of stooled diapers per shift.
Notify provider:

i. Infant has not urinated in the first 24 hours.
ii. Infant has not stooled or passed meconium plug in first 24 hours.
1) Terminal meconium may have occurred after delivery. Ensure that this was
reported and documented.

G. STANDARDS OF CARE: HEIGHT AND WEIGHT/OTHER MEASUREMENTS:
Weight and length will be measured and documented after birth. Daily weight will be measured
and documented until discharge.

1.

1.

1.

2.

a.

Weights shall be documented in grams and length in cm.

Occipital frontal circumference (OFC) will be measured at birth and/or when ordered by a
provider.
Abdominal (ABD) and chest circumference will be measured at birth.

a.
b.

C.

ABD, chest, and OFC measurements shall be documented in centimeters (cm).
Medications shall be calculated using the patient’'s admission weight unless ordered
otherwise by a provider.

Ballard assessment for gestational age shall be performed on all newborns within 12
hours post-delivery.

STANDARDS OF CARE: ASPIRATION ASSESSMENT:

Maintain aspiration precautions for newborns in transition.

a.
b.

C.

Keep bulb syringe in clean dry area close to newborn’s head for use PRN.

i. Do not use bulb suctioning for oropharyngeal and nasal malformations

Some newborn infants may have increased or thick secretions and may require deep

suctioning.

Chest physiotherapy requires a provider order and is contraindicated for newborns with

history of meconium fluids.

i. Chest physiotherapy when ordered shall be performed by a respiratory clinical
practitioner (RCP).

STANDARDS OF CARE: PATIENT SAFETY:

The healthcare team shall provide measures to ensure patient safety for the unique maternal-fetal
dyad and/or mother baby couplet.
Patient safety shall be assessed per the following:

a.

b.

The RN shall observe the patient’s physical condition on admission at transfer to their unit,

prior to and after procedures and as needed.

All newborns shall have identification bands placed at birth and be identified per WCS

procedure: “Identification/Banding of Newborns.”

i Newborns admitted to TCMC following delivery outside the labor and delivery unit
shall be banded with mother present prior to separation for evaluation of current
condition per procedure as referenced above.

Newborn aAllergies will be monitored and documented upon admission as No Known

Allergies (NKA).

i. Any known medication or fool allergy shall be documented as follows:

1) The patient allergy band.
2) Allergy sticker placed on the front of the chart.
3) Medication Administration Record.
Orders shall be obtained, reviewed, and implemented per PCS: Provider Orders policy.

80



Women and Newborn Services (WNS)
Standards of Care - Newboms

Page 6 of 12

e. Critical test values shall be reported per PCS Procedure: Critical Results and Critical
Test/Diagnostic Procedures.

f. Patient’s specimens shall be handled per PCS: Specimen Handling Procedure or by
selecting the appropriate Mosby’s Online Specimen Collection Procedure.

g. Electronic or medical equipment brought to TCMC shall be evaluated, used, and store per
PCS: Medical Equipment brought into the Facility, policy.

h. Hand-off communication shall be provided per PCS: Hand-off Communication policy and

unit specific hand-off policies.

i. Medication shall be reconciled per PCS: Medication Reconciliation policy.

- All alarms shalll be reviewed for appropriateness based on patient’s status and maintained
in the ON position with the volume at an audible level.

J. SYSTEM REVIEW:
1. All newborn patients will have a general system review in all systems completed and
documented. Detailed system assessments shall be completed and documented as indicated by
the patient’s condition.

K. STANDARD OF CARE NEWBORN: ASSESSMENT:
1. All patients admitted to WNS nursing units shall be assessed by a registered nurse per the
following:
a. Admlsswn and/or Transfer Assessment

. Infant should first have skm to skln contact wuth mother and time to
breastfeed for as long as possible according to infant stability. Complete
physical exam by 2 hours of age.

fiili.  Upon admlssmn to couplet care
2. Admlsswn Assessment — Patlent Hlstory (post-dellvery)
a. All inpatients shall have the Admission Assessment — Patient History completed and
decumented-within 2 hours of delivery.
b. After delivery: Vitals will be done q30 minutes times four with one assessment being a
complete head to toe.
3. Initial Shift Assessment
a. An RN shall perform an ongoing head to toe assessment as follows:

| i. Transition RNNursery: within 2 hours of the start of the shift.
ii. Newborn couplet: within 3 hours of the start of the shift.
b. Reassessment (Focused assessment)

i. After completion of an admission or an initial shift assessment, all patients shall
have a-head-te-tee-focused reassessment performed and documented en-the
engmng—assessmeni—dunng—the-shiﬁ-as assessment completed and no changes
since last assessment. See definition section.

. Guidelines for reassessment are as follows:

| 1) Transition RNNursery: every 6-4-hours until stable newborn returned to
couplet care (if applicable) or more frequently if treatment or condition
warrants.

2) Newborn couplet: after transitional assessments are complete, every 4
hours until 12 hours post birth, then if stable, every 6 hours until discharge
or more frequent if treatment or condition warrants.

iii. If the patient’s guardian refuses a reassessment, document their refusal in the
medical record.

| L. STANDARDS OF CARE 1.1: ADMISSION ASSESSMENT NEUROLOGICAL SYSTEM REVIEW:
1. Neurological: System Review.
2. Assess for the following:

81



Women and Newborn Services (WNS)
Standards of Care - Newbomns

Page 7 of 12
3.
4,

| M.

| N

a. Periods of alertness.
b. Symmetric features and movements
c. Posture
d. Tone
e. Tremors or jitteriness
Seizure activity.
a. Facial nerve paralysis.
b. Newborn reflexes (Moro/startle, reflex, rooting, grasp, plantar, and Babinski reflexes).
C. Assess if reflexes are symmetrical.
i. Birth trauma of the head, assess for risk factors.
i Operative assist during delivery process.
d. Molding or bruising of head, presence of.
i. Abrasions.
i. Caput succedaneum.
iii. Cephalohematoma.
e. Eyes:

i. Sclera - clear, redness, hemorrhage.

ii. Drainage.
Abstinence scoring needs continuous monitoring by RN to assess for signs and symptoms of
withdrawal. See Neonatal Abstinence Scoring policy.

STANDARDS OF CARE 1.2: ADMISSION ASSESSMENT CARDIOVASCULAR SYSTEM REVIEW:
1. o

Cardiovascular System Review.
a. Assess heart sounds in all auscultatory areas; note regular or irregular apex or point of
maximal impulse (PMI) at left third or four intercostal space.
i. Murmurs should be reported to MD with notification of birth.
ii. Murmurs that are present after 12 hours of life should be reported and evaluated to
rule out underlying structural abnormalities.
1) Notify provider immediately if infant is symptomatic.
2) Notification of the stable infant during provider rounds the next morning is
appropriate or notification via the well baby line.
Check capillary refil.
Check edema location and grade.
Palpate bilateral brachial and femoral pulses of the newborn.
Assess peripheral perfusion; skin warm and dry.
Assess newborn’s fontanels — anterior and posterior.
i. Flat, depressed, bulging.
ii. Soft, tense.

~0oo0yU

STANDARDS OF CARE 1.3: ADMISSION ASSESSMENT PULMONARY SYSTEM REVIEW:

1.

Puimonary: System Review.
Check oxygen delivery devices if applicable.
b Check amount oxygen flow/FiQ, if applicable.
c Assess respiratory effort.
d Auscultate breath sounds all lobes.
e. Assess sputum amount, color, and consistency.
f. Assess for presence of cough.
g Assess for presence of artificial airway, tubes, and drains.
h. Assess chest expansion for symmetry.
In addition o above:
a Expected findings for chest/lungs:
i Patency of airway.
i. Patency of nares.
1) Presence of congestion or drainage.
2) Symmetric, barrel shaped, with equal anteroposterior and lateral diameters.

82



Women and Newborn Services (WNS)
Standards of Care - Newborns
Page 8 of 12

3) Slight subcostal and intercostals retractions are common during
transition-
4) Bilateral bronchial breath sounds. Fine crackles and transient hoarseness

| are normal during transition.
5) Respiratory rate and effort.

b. Document all findings, notify provider for abnormals. Assess for:
i. Tachypnea — persistent respiratory rate greater than 60 per minute.
i, Grunting.
iii. Significant retraction.
iv. Questionable color.
V. Lack of breath sounds in one or more lobes.
vi. Oximetry spot checks based on vital signs and clinical assessments.

| . STANDARDS OF CARE 1.4: ADMISSION ASSESSMENT GASTROINTESTINAL (Gl) SYSTEM

REVIEW:
1. Gl: System Review
a. Assess contour/tone of abdomen.
b. Assess for rausea-andior-vomiting.
C. Auscultate for presence of bowel sounds in all four quadrants.
d.

2. In addition to above assess for:

a. Maternal risk factors:
i. Polyhydraminios.
. Cesarean delivery.
iii. Maternal intrapartum bleeding.
iv. Meconium stained fluid.

b. Warning signs:
i. Green bilious emesis.
ii. Presence of blood in emesis or stools.
iii. Tense or tender abdomen.
iv. Abnormal distention.
V. Notify provider immediately for presence of warning signs.

| P. STANDARDS OF CARE 1.5: ADMISSION ASSESSMENT GENITOUTINARY SYSTEM REVIEW
1. Genitourinary (GU) System Review

a. Assess urine color and frequency.
b. Assess for bladder distension if no urination in 24 hours.
C. Assess external anatomy as applicable.
2. In addition to above, assess for:
a. Females:

i. Presence of labial skin tags and/or edema.
ii. Presence of discharge.
iil. Presence of ambiguous genitalia.

i. Location of meatus (hypospadias, epispadias).
i Condition of foreskin.

iii. Presence of descended testes.

iv. Condition of scrotum (hydrocele, hernia, etc.).

V. Presence of ambiguous genitalia.

83



I
l
I

Women and Newborn Services (WNS)
Standards of Care - Newborns

Page 9 of 12

| Q.

R.

vi. Assess circumcision site when applicable.

STANDARDS OF CARE 1.6: ADMISSION ASSESSMENT MUSCULOSKELETAL SYSTEM REVIEW:
1.

Musculoskeletal System Review.
a. Presence of joint or musculoskeletal abnormalities.
b. Full range of motion against gravity, some to full resistance of all extremities.
c. Mebility- Movement appropriate for age.
in addition to above, assess for presence of:
a. Symmetry of extremities.
b. Head/neck:
i. Full range of motion of neck without torticollis.
H—Tenic-neckreflexprasent:

ii. Sutures.

iil. Mouth, lips, and palate (patent, fused, cleft, intact, precocious teeth).
iv. Nares

Muscle tone.

Intact clavicles with no tenderness, swelling, or crepitation.

All ten fingers and toes present without webbing, extra digits.

Spine intact without openings, masses, curves, dimples, or hairy tufts.

g. Gluteal folds/creases, palmar creases, or hip click.

=0 o0

STANDARDS OF CARE 1.7: ADMISSION ASSESSMENT INTEGUMENTARY SYSTEM REVIEW:
1.

Skin Assessment.

a. Admission andlorshift-assessment-exams.

i. Temperature.

ii. Color —pink;-cyaneosisacrosyanosis;-pallorjaundice,plethoric:
iii. Warmth.

iv. Turgor.

V. Moisture.

vi. Edema.

vii. Transient mottling.

viii. Vernix

iX. Lanugo.

X. Milia.

Xi. Port wine stain.

Xii. Capillary hemangiomas: “stork bite,” “angel kiss.”
xiii. ~ Mongolian spots.

xiv.  Skin tags

xv. Newborn Rash(eErythema toxmum) pink popular rash with vesicles on chest,
arms, back, or abdomen.
xvi. Petechiae.
izxvii. Ecchymosis
The infant should be dried per Neonatal Resuscitation Guidelines without wiping all the vernix
from the skin. Visible blood should be cleaned from the infant. After 24 hours of life, the stable

lnfant may receive an |nmal bath upon parent s request —EeFteFm—mian&s-(gmaféer—than-er-eqk@_tg

a. If the'ir'li'ant i’s bathéd dllu;'ing the hospital stay, familial participation should be

encouraged.
b. A sponge bath may be given to the infant in the crib and then the infant should be

placed skin to skin with mother.

84



Women and Newborn Services (WNS)
Standards of Care - Newborns
Page 10 of 12

c. Earlier bathing may be considered per specific parental request, meconium stained
infant, or malodorous fluid.

d. The infant whose mother is infected with a blood borne pathogen or current STD
should receive a bath as soon as possible after delivery.

3. Cord Care/Assessment.

a. Assessment to include:
i. Number of vessels.
i. Condition — moist, drying.
i Drainage.
iv. Clamp.

b. Initial: clean the cord and surrounding skin surface during the initial bath with cleansing

solution, rinse thoroughly and then allow to air dry folding the diaper away from the

umbilical cord.
C. Ongoing: every shift and as needed, inspect cord for degree of moisture or dryness,
drainage and odor. Keep the cord dry and clean if cord becomes soiled with urine or stool,

cleanse with water.

S. STANDARDS OF CARE 1.8: ASSESSMENT PSYCHOLOSOCIAL SYSTEM REVIEW:

1. Psychosocial assessment will be done with the mother and social service consultation ordered as
needed.
T. OTHER PROCEDURES:
1. Newborn will have blood glucose performed per Biood Glucose Newborn MonitoringNewborn
Hypoglysemia-during-Transition-to-Exirauterine Life Standardized Procedure.
2. Toxicology urine specimen will be obtained if the mother has a positive toxicology screen, a

positive history of substance abuse, is suspected of substance abuse or with diagnosis, has had
less than or equal to three prenatal visits or suspicion of placental abruption and on all babies
assigned to Neonatology.

3. Prophylactic eye ointment and Vitamin K will be given per PCS Standardized Procedure:
Administration of Aquamephyton Injection and Erythromycin Ophthalmic Ointment to the
Newborn.

4, Hepatitis B vaccination or Hep B vaccine and HBIG immunuglobin injection will be given per PCS

Standardized Procedure: Administration of Pediatric Hepatitis B Vaccine and Hepatitis B
Immunoglobulin (HBIG) to Newborns.

5. Newborn Hearing Screen prior to discharge, but at least 12 hours post-delivery per hospital
procedure: Hearing Screening Newborn and Infant.

6. Serum Franseutaneous-bilirubin screening for assessment of jaundice will be done around 24

hours, prior to discharge or if baby visually jaundiced.

7. Newborn metabolic screen will be done prior to discharge per PCS Procedure: Newborn Screen,
Collection of Specimen.
8. Universal Screening for Critical Congenital Heart Disease will be done after 24 hours of life or

prior to discharge per Standardized Procedure: Universal Blood Saturation Screening for Critical
Congenital Heart Disease (CCHD).

9. Car seat challenge will be performed on infants meeting criteria per WNS/NICU Procedure: Care
Seat Challenge Test.

10. Neonatal Abstinence Scoring will be performed on all infants meeting criteria per WNS/NICU
Procedure: Neonatal Abstinence Scoring.

u. NURSING PROCESS:
1. Standards of Care: Assessment.

a. An RN shall ensure all maternal and infant patients have a general system review in all
systems completed. Detailed system assessments shall be completed as indicated by the
patient’s condition.

2. Standards of Care: Diagnosis.

85



Women and Newbom Services (WNS)
Standards of Care - Newborns

Page 11 of 12

1.

2.

a. An RN shall review the data obtained from each patient’s assessment, history, and
information documented by the interdisciplinary team to identify outcomes to develop the
patient’s plan of care (POC) every shift, and PRN.

Standards of Care: Outcome ldentification.

a. An RN shall use the information obtained from Standards of Care: Assessment and
Standards of Care: Diagnosis to identify appropriate patient outcomes every shift and
PRN.

Standards of Care: Planning.

a. An RN shall use the outcomes identified in Standards of Care: Outcome ldentification and
the provider orders to develop an individualized patient POC. The POC shall prescribe
interventions which may be implemented to attain expected outcomes.

Standards of Care: Implementation.

a. An RN shall implement the interventions identified in the POC and/or ensure unlicensed
assistant personnel are assigned task appropriately.

Standards of Care: Evaluation.

a. An RN shall evaluate the patient’s progress forward obtaining their outcomes in the POC
per TCMC policy.

b. Emergent and urgent changes in the patient’s assessment shall be communicated to
providers as soon as possible per TCMC policy.

C. Non-emergent and/or not urgent changes in patient’s assessment shall be communicated
during provider rounds or as soon as possible within the shift the changes were identified.

Standards of Care: Documentation.

a. It is recommended that all shift assessments, reassessments, PRN assessments and/or
care provided be documented after completion of the care in a timely manner.

b. When it is not possible to document shift assessments, reassessments, PRN
assessments and/or care provided due to unforeseen circumstances such as urgent or
emergent situations, changes in assignment or increased patient acuity, document the
nursing care and assessment as soon as reasonably able to do so.

C. Reasonable and a timely manner may be defined as within 4 hours after completion of
assessments or care provided.

REFERENCES:

American Academy of Pediatrics and American College of Obstetricians and Gynecologists.
(2012). 2007—-Guidelines for Perinatal Care Sixth- Seventh Edition. Washington, DC.

American Academy of Pediatrics (2010). Policy Statement — Hospital Stay for Healthy Term
Newborns. Retrieved on 01/12/2011:

http:aapolicy.aappublications.org/cgi/reprint/pediatrics; 125/2/405.pdf.

American Nurses Association (ANA). (200410). Nursing scope and standards of practice. Silver
Spring, MD: Nursesbooks.org.

American Nurses Association (ANA). (2016). The nursing process. Retrieved from
http://lwww.nursingworid.org

Association of Women’s Health, Obstetric and Neonatal Nurses (AWHONN). Standards for
Professional Nursing Practice in the Care of Women and Newborns, Sixth Edition.
Association of Women’s Health, Obstetric and Neonatal Nurses (AWHONN). Perinatal
Nursing. (2014). 4™ Edition.

California Board of Registered Nursing. (2010). Nursing practice act business and professions
code. Chapter 6 Nursing: Section 2725. Retrieved March 2010 from
http://111.rn.ca.gov/regulations/rn.shimil.

California Board of Registered Nursing. (2010). Standards of competent performance. California
code of regulations, title 16, section 1443.5. Retrieved March 2010 from
http://111.rn.ca.gov/requlations/rn.shtmi.

86



Women and Newborn Services (WNS)
Standards of Care - Newborns
Page 12 of 12

8:9. California Board of Registered Nursing. (2010). California code of regulations, title 22, section
70125. Retrieved March 2010 from hitp://111.rm.ca.gov/requlations/r.shiml.
A/ ) v ] J ) iati AN aman’

\ £\ 0 alalllal O = -

10. Mattson, S., & smith, J.E. (Eds). (2011). Core Curriculum for Maternal-Newborn Nursing 4"
Edition) (4™ Ed.). Philadelphia, PA: Saunders.

40-11. Lund, C. (2001). Neonatal Skin Care; Clinical outcomes of the AWHONN/NANN evidence-
based clinical practice guideline. JOGNN. 30, 41-51.

87



STANDARDS OF CARE - POSTPARTUM
WOMEN’'S AND CHILDREN'SNEWBORN’S SERVICES

SUBJECT: STANDARDS OF CARE - POSTPARTUM

ISSUE DATE: 06/14

REVISION DATE(S):

Department Approval Date(s): 07/16
Department of OB/GYN Approval Date(s): 04/1312/16
Division of Neonatology Approval Date(s): n/a
Department of Pediatrics Approval Date(s): n/a
Pharmacy and Therapeutics Approval Date(s): n/a
Medical Executive Committee Approval Date(s): 1117
Professional Affairs Committee Approval Date(s): 06/14
Board of Directors Approval Date(s): 06/14
A PREAMBLE:

B.

1.

Nursing practice in the care of Women and Newborns is delivered in an environment that
respects the goals, preferences, and patient rights of the unique dyad of the maternal-fetal unit
and/or mother-baby couplet and the family from admission, through the episode of care, to
discharge. The Women'’s and Children’'sNewborn’s Services (WNS) nursing staff shall use
established TCMC and unit specific policies and procedures, and shall adhere to the
standards and guidelines set forth by the California Nurse Practice Act, American Nurses
Association (ANA), Association of Women’s Health, Obstetrics and Neonatal Nurses
(AWHONN), and National Association of Neonatal Nurses (NANN).Couplet-care is based on a
philosophy that embraces the family’s spiritual and cultural values, is ethically relevant and is
grounded on evidence-based practices

DEFINITIONS:
Standards of-CareProfessional Nursing Practice: “Authoritative statements of the duties

that all registered nurses, regardless of role, populatlon or speCIalty are expected to

1.

2:3.

Scope of Nursing Practice: “describes the who, what, where, when, why and how of
nursing practice. Each of these questions must be answered to provide a complete
picture of the dynamic and complex practice of nursing and its evolving boundaries and
membership (ANA, 2010 p. 67).

a. “Standards of care are Standards of Professional Nursing Practice.”

Nursing Process: The essential core of practlce for the Registered Nurse (RN) to deliver
holistic, patient-focused care. The nursmg process as outlined by the ANA (2016)
mcludes the following

a. Assessment: A systematic, dynamic way to collect and analyze data about a
clientpatient i.e., patient. Assessment includes not only physiological data, but
also psychologlcal sociocultural, spiritual, economic and life-style factors”. An

assessment includes subjective and objective data. process-by-which-theregistered

88



| Women's and Children:sNewborn’s Services Policy/Procedure Manual
Standards of Care Postpartum
Page 2 of 11

4-5.

6-7.

8.

i.' Subjectlve-what the patlent says

ii. Objective-observation based on assessment findings
b. Focused Assessment/Reassessment: A more specific generalized assessment

that focuses on the main items needed reassessed. This may be documented as
no change since last assessment. The items that may be assessed are not all
inclusive, but not limited to: orientation, assessment, level of consciousness,
affect/behavior, respiratory symptoms, respirations, respiratory pattern, skin
color, skin temperature, fundal/lochia/cesarean section/tubal ligation
assessment.

b-c. Diagnosis: A nurses’ clinical judgment about the client's-patient’s response to actual
or potential heaith conditions or needs.
ed. Outcomes/Planning: “Based on the assessment and diagnosis. Outcomes are

measureable and achieved short and long-range goals”. Measurable-expested;

2. Planning: {Care Plan i.e. Plan of Care): A comprehensive outline of care to be
delivered to attain expected outcomes.
ce. Implementation “Nursing care is implemented to the care plan. This is
“continuity of care from the patlent durmg hospltallzatlon and in preparatlon for
discharge needs” ‘ :

g int q I iato.
e-f.  Evaluation: The process of determining both the “Patient;s status client's-progress
nd the effectiveness of nursing care. it is

a process that involves continuously evaluation of the patient and the
modifications to the Plan of Care.”
Patient: Recipient of nursing care.
Health Care Providers: Individuals with special expertise who provide health care services or
assistance to clientspatients.
Significant Others: Family members and/or those significant to the clientpatient.
Reasonable and a timely manner: Defined as within 4 hours after completion of assessments
or care provided.
Registered nurses use the nursing process to plan and provide individualized care to their
patients. Nurses use the theoretical and evidence-based knowledge of human experiences and
responses to collaborate with patient and her fetus or newborn to assess, diagnose, identify
outcomes, plan, implement and evaluate care. Nursing interventions are intended to produce
beneficial effects, contribute to quality outcomes, and above all, do no harm. Nurses evaluate
the effectiveness of their care in relation to.identified outcomes and use evidence-based
practice to improve care (ANA, 2010)".

WCSWNS STANDARDS OF PRACTICE:

1.

2.

3.

The results of care provided to the patient shall be continuously evaluated by the health care
team, while looking for opportunities to improve delivery and quality of care given.
A comprehensive and dynamic data-base shall be maintained on all patients admitted to the

hospital.
The patient can expect to have appropriate confidentiality maintained at all times.

89



| Women's and Children'sNewborn’s Services Policy/Procedure Manual
Standards of Care Postpartum

Page 3 of 11
4,
5.
6.
7.

8.
9.

10.
11.
12.

13.

The patient can expect that the RN shall ensure the optimal desired level of privacy.

The patient can expect that the RN shall collect initial objective data within established time
frames that reflect the gravity of his/her condition.

The patient can expect that the RN shall facilitate the availability of pertinent data and
collaborate with other members of the health care team to establish an integrated plan of care.
The identification and prioritization of the patient’s problems/needs shall be based on collected
data obtained from assessments, patient/parent interviews, patient medical records, and from
other members of the health care team.

The patient can expect that the RN shall utilize collected data to individualize the plan of care.
The patient can expect that the RN shall establish the priority of problems/needs on an ongoing
basis according to the gravity of the patient’s condition.

An appropriate plan of care shall be formulated for each patient.

The plan of care will be implemented according to the priority of identified problems or needs.
The plan of care shall be developed with an understanding of the psychosocial needs of the
patient.

The patient can expect that there will be documentation of interventions related to the plan of
care and that this documentation will be part of the patient’s permanent medical record.

D. NURSING PROCESS:

1.

2.

STANDARDS OF CARE: ASSESSMENT

a. RN shall ensure all maternal and infant patients have a general system review in all
systems completed. Detailed system assessments shall be completed as indicated by
the patient’s condition.

STANDARDS OF CARE: DIAGNOSIS

a. RN shall review the data obtained from each patient’s assessment, history, and
information documented by the interdisciplinary team to identify outcomes to develop
the patient’s plan of care (POC) every shift and PRN.

STANDARDS OF CARE: OUTCOME IDENTIFICATION

a. RN shall use the information obtained from Standards of Care: Assessment and
Standards of Care: Diagnosis to identify appropriate patient outcomes every shift and
PRN.

STANDARDS OF CARE: PLANNING

a. RN shall use the outcomes identified in Standards of Care; Outcome Identification and

the provider orders to develop an individualized patient POC. The POC shall prescribe
interventions, which may be implemented to attain expected outcomes.

STANDARDS OF CARE: IMPLEMENTATION
a. RN shall implement the interventions identified in the POC and/or ensure unlicensed

assistant personnel are assigned tasks appropriately.
STANDARDS OF CARE: EVALUATION

a. RN shall evaluate the patient’s progress toward obtaining their outcomes in the POC
per TCMC policy.

b. Emergent and urgent changes in the patient’'s assessment shall be communicated to
providers as soon as possible per TCMC policy.

c. Non-emergent and/or not urgent changes in patient’s assessment shall be

communicated during provider rounds or as soon as possible within the shift the
changes were identified.

E. STANDARDS OF CARE: DOCUMENTATION:

1.
2.

It is recommended that all shift assessments, reassessments, PRN assessments and/or care
provided be documented after completion of the care in a timely manner.

When it is not possible to document shift assessments, reassessments, PRN assessments
and/or care provided due to unforeseen circumstances such as urgent or emergent situations,
changes in assignment or increased patient acuity, document the nursing care and assessment
as soon as reasonably able to do so.

90



| Women's and Ghildren'sNewborn’s Services Policy/Procedure Manual
Standards of Care Postpartum

Page 4 of 11
3.

Reasonable and a timely manner may be defined as within 4 hours after completion of
assessments or care provided.

GENERAL OB NURSING ASSESSMENT

A. STANDARDS OF CARE: VITAL SIGNS:

Maternal vital signs shall include:

Temperature, documented in Celsius (preferred)
Blood Pressure (BP)

Heart Rate (HR)

Respiratory Rate (RR)

1

a.
b
C.
d.
e.
f.

a.

Sp0O2

Pain Level

Vitals signs shall be obtained on admission, transfer to a unit, at discharge per Patient Care
Services (PCS) procedure Discharge of Patients, per provider's orders and as follows:
Postpartum, Vaginal Delivery:

In Labor and delivery vVital signs are obtained every 15 minutes x4, at 2
hours, upon admission to couplet care, then every 6 hours for the first 24 hours
post-delivery, then every shift until discharge, prior to discharge per Patient Care
Services (PCS) procedure Discharge of Patients and prn as clinically indicated
or ordered by provider. Patient’s temperature is taken x 1 following delivery.
Notify provider if:

1) Temperature greater than or equal to 100.4° F or 38° C

2) Blood pressure greater than or equal to systolic 140 and/or diastolic 90;
greater than or equal to systolic 160 and/or 110 diastolic if known
preeclamptic

3) Pulse greater than or equal to 120 bpm

4) Respirations greater than 28 or less than 12

Post-Operative, Cesarean Delivery:

i.
il.

PACU vital signs as ordered by anesthesiologist/provider

Vital signs, including temperature, upon admission to couplet care, then every 6

hours for first 48 hours post-delivery, then every shift and prn as clinically

indicated or ordered by provider and prior to discharge per Patient Care

Services (PCS) procedure Discharge of Patients

1) See anesthesia Power Plan for vital signs in the first 24 hours after
cesarean section (generally includes respiratory rate every 1 hour times
12 hours then every 2 hours times 12 hours).

Notify provider if:

1) Temperature greater than or equal to 100.4° F or 38° C

2) Blood pressure greater than or equal to systolic 140 and/or diastolic 90;
greater than or equal to systolic 160 and/or 110 diastolic if known
preeclamptic

3) Pulse greater than or equal to 120 bpm

4) Respirations greater than 28 or less than 12

B. STANDARDS OF CARE: PAIN ASSESSMENT:
Assessment: Pain per Pain Management Policy

1.

Papow

A general pain assessment shall consist of the following:
Acceptable pain

Pain scale
Current pain intensity
If patient complains of pain, assess the following:

Location, intensity, and duration/onset
Quality/type

9N



| Women's and Children'sNewborn’s Services Policy/Procedure Manual

Standards of Care Postpartum
Page 5 of 11

iif.
iv.

Aggravating factors
Alleviating factors

f. Assess for presence of pain/discomfort with vital signs and PRN

J«@

Perform a pain assessment with each patient report of new or different pain.
Perform a pain reassessment as follows:

Thirty (30) minutes after intravenous medications, intramuscular, or
subcutaneous intervention
One (1) hour after PO intervention

C. STANDARDS OF CARE: INTAKE AND OUTPUT:

1. Intake and output shall be monitored as ordered and as follows:
a. Postpartum, Vaginal Delivery:

Check if patient voiding without difficulty x 2 post-delivery.RN or designee to
offer assistance as needed.

After delivery or after catheter removal goal is for patient to void spontaneously
within 6 hours

1) If patient on I/O or has an IV ordered, notify provider if measured output
is less than or equal to 30 mL per hour or less than or equal to 120 mL in
4 hours
ii. Maintain IV access for 24 hrs. post epidural anesthesia unless ordered by
provider.
iv. Post-partum hemorrhage
1) Assess and review risk factors for obstetrical hemorrhage, and monitor
patient’s blood loss for baseline blood loss output
2) Monitor lochia color, odor, amount, consistency, clots, steady stream or
trickle
a) Assess pads and saturation
b) Weigh all blood saturated pads, chux, other soft/cloth materials
for accurate assessment of blood loss
C) Document blood loss in medical record, including provider
notification, interventions, blood replacement products, and
medications given.
d) Refer to WESWNS Obstetrical Hemorrhage procedure.
b. Postoperative, Cesarean Delivery:

OB PACU: upon arrival from the OR and prior to transfer to couplet care:

1) Assess and document the number of the IV fluid bag

2) Assess and document patency of the Foley catheter with urine collection
bag for amount, color and clarity of urine

1&O totals every shift with 24 hour totals for day of delivery, and post-op day.

1) Notify provider if measured output is less than or equal to 30 mL per
hour or less than or equal to 120 mL in 4 hours

2) IV converted to saline lock or discontinued on post-op day 1, or as
ordered by provider

3) Foley catheter discontinued on post-op day 1 or as ordered by provider
a) Assess bladder/voiding difficulties prn
b) Check voiding x2 post-removal of catheter. RN or designee to

offer assistance as needed. After catheter removal goal is for
patient to void spontaneously within 6 hours.

Post-operative cesarean hemorrhage:

1) Assess and review risk factors for obstetrical hemorrhage, and monitor
patient’s blood loss for baseline blood loss output

2) Monitor lochia color, odor, amount, consistency, clots, steady stream or
trickle
a) Assess pads and saturation

92



| Women's and Children'sNewborn’s Services Policy/Procedure Manual
Standards of Care Postpartum
Page 6 of 11
b) Weigh all blood saturated pads, chux, other soft/cloth materials

for accurate assessment of blood loss
c) Document blood loss in medical record, including provider
notification, interventions, blood replacement products, and
medications given.
d) Refer to WESWNS Obstetrical Hemorrhage procedure.
iv. Assess for the presence of tubes and drains, if present, assess type and
location
1) Confirmation of placement, and drainage description
2) Check tube placement for drainage and insertion site integrity

D. STANDARDS OF CARE: HEIGHT AND WEIGHT/OTHER MEASUREMENT:

1. Height and weight will be self-reported and/or transcribed from prenatal record with information
from last office visit prior to admission. If the situation permits, it is preferred that the patient be
weighed upon admission to Labor and Delivery.

a. Weights shall be documented in kilograms (kg) and height in centimeters (cm)
b. Medications shall be calculated using the patient’'s admission weight unless ordered
otherwise by a provider.

E. STANDARDS OF CARE: ASPIRATION ASSESSMENT:
1. Maintain aspiration precautions for maternal patients identified at risk.
a. Maintain head of bead (HOB) at 30 degrees at all times
i. If eclamptic seizure, lower head of bed, open airway, roll patient to side and
suction secretions as necessary
ii. Avoid attempts to insert suctioning device when patient’s teeth are clenched
b. Maintain suction equipment at bedside at all times.

F. STANDARDS OF CARE: PATIENT SAFETY:
1. The health care team shall provide measures to ensure patient safety for the unique maternal-
fetal dyad and/or mother baby couplet. This includes the bed in the lowest position, wheels
locked, and room free of clutter.

2. Patient safety shall be assessed per the following:
a. The RN shall observe the patient’s physical condition on admission and/or transfer to
their unit, prior to and after epidural placement and/or other procedures and as needed.
b. Patients shall be identified per Patient Care Services (PCS): ldentification, Patient
Policy.
C. Allergies will be monitored and documented upon admission

i Any known medication or food allergy shall be documented as follows:
1) The patient allergy band
2) Allergy sticker placed on the front of the chart

3) Medication Administration Record
ii. Orders shall be obtained, reviewed, and implemented per PCS: Provider Orders
Policy.
d. Critical test values shall be reported per PCS Procedure: Critical Results and Critical
Test/Diagnostic Procedures.
e. Patient’s specimens shall be handled per PCS: Specimen Handling Procedure or by
selecting the appropriate Mosby’s Online Specimen Collection Procedure.
f. Electronic or medical equipment brought to TCMC shall be evaluated, used, and stored
per PCS: Medical Equipment Brought into the Facility Policy.
g. Patients shall be assessed for falls per PCS: Falls Risk Procedure.
h. Hand-off Communication shall be provided per PCS: Hand-off Communication Policy

and unit specific hand-off policies.
i Medication shall be reconciled per PCS: Medication Reconciliation Policy.

93



| Women's and Children’sNewborn's Services Policy/Procedure Manual
Standards of Care Postpartum

Page 7 of 11
j- All alarms shall be reviewed for appropriateness based on patient’s status and
maintained in the ON position with the volume at an audible level.
SYSTEM REVIEW
A. All maternal patients will have a general system review in all systems completed and documented.
Detailed system assessments shall be completed and documented as indicated by the patient's
condition.

B. STANDARD OF CARE 1: ASSESSMENT:
| 1. All patients admitted to WCSWNS nursing units shall be assessed by a Registered Nurse per
the following:
2. Admission and/or Transfer Assessment

3. Admission Assessment- Patient History:
a. All inpatients shall have the Admission Assessment-Patient History completed and
documented within 24 hours of admission to the unit.
i. This assessment-patient history shall include an assessment for obstetric

hemorrhage
4, Medication Patient History Form
a. All patients shall have a Medication Patient History completed as soon as possible upon
arrival to the unit per the Medication Reconciliation Policy.
5. Initial Shift Assessment
a. RN shall initiate an ongoing head to toe assessment as follows: within 3 hours of the
start of the shift
6. Reassessment/focused assessment may be documented as no change since last
assessment
a. After completion of an Admission or an Initial shift Assessment, all patients shall have a:

i. Focused reassessment (to usually include fundus, lochia, bladder; incision if
appllcable-breasts—and—mpples) performed and documented in the EMR.

iii. Aa more detailed assessment may be completed dependent on clinical
condition or per PCS Magnesium Sulfate procedure.

iiziii.  If the patient refuses a reassessment, document their refusal in the medical
record.

Ziv. System Specific Assessment (Focus assessment/postpartum assessment) shall

be-alsealso be completed as follows:
a1) Change in patient’s condition from the initial shift assessment or

reassessment.
b:2) Response to treatment provided to a patient
b. Postpartum assessment and frequency:

i. Uterine assessment (to include lochia assessment):

1) Fundal height/relationship to umbilicus ( -3, -2, -1, 0, +1, +2, +3)

2) Location (midline (ML), right of ML, left of ML, displaced — bladder
assessment)

3) Consistency (firm, boggy - firms with massage, boggy)

4) Time intervals, beginning post-delivery:
a) Birth — 2 hrs.: every 15 minutes x4, then at 2hours
b) 2hrs-6hrs: upon admission to MBU, then every 6 hrs. post-

delivery

94



| Women's and Childrer'sNewborn’s Services Policy/Procedure Manual
Standards of Care Postpartum
Page 8 of 11

C.

c) Vaginal Delivery: 6- 24 Hrs. every 6 hrs. or sooner if clinically
indicated times 24 hours, then g shift until discharge
d) Cesarean Section: 6-48 hours: every 6 hours or sooner if clinical
indicated times 24 hours then q shift until discharge.
i, Evaluation of blood loss/lochia: include at the same time intervals for uterine
assessment
1) Slight, Scant, Moderate, Heavy (with or without clots)
2) Rubra, serosa or other
3) Note presence of foul odor
4) Risk assessment for obstetric hemorrhage
a) Refer to WCSWNS Obstetrical hemorrhage procedure.
ii. Perineal/hemorrhoid assessment as applicable.
1) Approximated
2) Color (presence or absence of ecchymosis)
3) Edema
4) Presence or absence of Hemorrhoids

STANDARDS OF CARE 1.1: ASSESSMENT NEUROLOGICAL SYSTEM REVIEW ADMISSION

ASSESSMENT:
1. Neurological: System Review
a. Assess the following:
i. Level of consciousness
ii. Orientation
iii. Presence of Headache
iv. Visual disturbances, e.g. blurred vision or scotoma
V. Deep Tendon Reflexes
Vi. Patellar or brachial
vii. Clonus
b. Effects of epidural/regional anesthesia on lower extremities

i. Progressive return to pre-anesthesia response, accompanied by increased

voluntary movement of legs
ii. Assessment of epidural site, removal of catheter post-delivery per procedure
(Reference: WCSWNS procedure: “Epidural Medication Administration”)

STANDARDS OF CARE 1.2: ASSESSMENT CARDIOVASCULAR SYSTEM REVIEW ADMISSION

ASSESSMENT:
1. Cardiovascular System Review
a. Assess heart sounds in all auscultatory areas; note regular or irregular
b. Check capillary refill
c. Check edema location and grade
d. Palpate bilateral peripheral pulses: radial and dorsalis pedis
e. Assess peripheral perfusion; skin warm and dry
f. Assess Homan's sign for presence of thrombophiebitis

STANDARDS OF CARE 1.3: ASSESSMENT PULMONARY SYSTEM REVIEW ADMISSION
ASSESSMENT: -
1. Pulmonary: System Review
a. Check oxygen delivery devices if applicable
b. Check amount oxygen flow if applicable
C. Assess pulse oximetry
i. For Magnesium Sulfate administration for preeclampsia/preterm labor see
Reference: PCS procedure: “Magnesium Sulfate Administration in Obstetric
Patients”

95



| Women's and Ghildren'sNewborn’s Services Policy/Procedure Manual
Standards of Care Postparium

Page 9 of 11
d. Assess respiratory effort
e Ausculitate breath sounds all lobes
f. Assess sputum amount, color, and consistency if applicable
g. Assess for presence of cough
h Assess for presence of artificial airway, tubes, and drains if applicable
i. Assess chest expansion for symmetry
F. STANDARDS OF CARE1.4: ASSESSMENT GASTROINTESTINAL (GI) SYSTEM REVIEW

| J.

ADMISSION ASSESSMENT:
1. Gl: System Review
a. Assess abdomen
i Round, distention
ii. Soft, firm, distended, non-distended

b. Assess for nausea and/or vomiting
cC. Auscultate for presence of bowel sounds in all four quadrants
d. Assess bowel! function including passing flatus or last stool

STANDARDS OF CARE 1.5: ASSESSMENT GENITOUTINARY SYSTEM REVIEW ADMISSION
ASSESSMENT:
1. Genitourinary (GU) System Review

a. Assess urine color and clarity, frequency and voiding difficulties/dysuria

b. Assess for bladder distension

STANDARDS OF CARE 1.6: ASSESSMENT MUSCULOSKELETAL SYSTEM REVIEW ADMISSION

ASSESSMENT:
1. Musculoskeletal System Review
a. Presence of assistive devices
b. Presence of joint or musculoskeletal abnormalities
C. Full range of motion against gravity, some to full resistance of all extremities
d. Mobility appropriate for age

STANDARDS OF CARE 1.7: ASSESSMENT INTEGUMENTARY SYSTEM REVIEW ADMISSION
ASSESSMENT:
1. Integumentary System Review:
a. Assess mucous membranes
ab. and-Sskin color; consistent with person’s ethnicity
b.c.  Palpate skin for temperature and moisture
ed. Assess skin turgor
d-e.  Assess skin integrity, temperature, and condition of any dressings
ef. Complete Braden Scale
fg. Assess for presence of specialty mattress/bed or overlay
g-h. Assess for the presence of skin abnormalities
hi.  Assess for the presence of pressure ulcers

STANDARDS OF CARE 1.8: ASSESSMENT PSYCHO/SOCIAL ADMISSION ASSESSMENT:

1. Psychosocial assessment shall consist of the following:
a. Coping
b Affect/Behavior
c Social Service (SS) Referral Reason
d. Distress
e. Stressors
f. Support/Coping Interventions
2. Psycho/Social: Nursing Interventions will be documented on initial admission assessment

and prn if change occurs

96



| Women's and Ghildren'sNewborn’s Services Policy/Procedure Manual

Standards of Care Postpartum
Page 10 of 11

a. In ordered to promote family centered care, the nurse shall:

i.
ii.
iii.
iv.
V.

vi.

vii.

viii.

Xi.

Xii.

Introduce bedside health care providers to the patient/family.

Review visitation and unit policies to patient/family on admission and as needed.
Assess and then verify with patient/family age appropriate needs.

Assess and then verify patient/family’s ability to understand and participate in the
plan of care.

Encourage the family to have periods of uninterrupted sleep/bonding when
appropriate.

Promote patient/family centered care

1) Discuss expectations and collaborate with patient/family

2) Encourage patient/family to ask questions

Promote patient independence in Activities of Daily Living (ADL)

Promote comfort measures (if ordered or request order) by:

1) Music therapy

2) Therapeutic recreation

3) Spiritual comfort

4) Guided imagery

5) Reminiscence therapy

6) Encourage family/friend to visit

7) Arrange for a child’s visitation
8) Arrange for pet therapy
9) Arrange for physical and/or occupational therapy.
Patients shall be informed of their responsibilities upon admission and as
necessary thereafter.
1) These responsibilities include:

a) Providing information

b) Asking questions

c) Following instructions

d) Following rules and regulations

e) Showing respect and consideration

f) Meeting financial commitments.

i) See TCMC Patient Handbook.
Encourage patient and/or their family to participate in their plan of care.
Observe bonding behaviors when applicable:
1) Eye contact
2) Holding infant
3) Talking to infant

4) Participating in care of infant — feeding, diaper changes, comforting
Request social services as appropriate.
1) Initiate social services referrals for the following (including, but not limited
to:
a) Adoptions; surrogates
b) Infants going to foster care
c) Patients with no prenatal care
d) Teen moms
e) Positive toxicology results
f) Mothers of infants in Neonatal Intensive Care or in another facility
g) All mothers and families experiencing Perinatal loss
h) Assistance with post-partum home care-

K. STANDARDS OF CARE: INFUSION THERAPY:
1. Central venous lines shall be assessed per PCS Central Venous Access Devices Procedure
2. Peripheral IV site shall be assessed on admission, ongoing and transfer from other nursing unit.

97



| Women's and Ghildren'sNewborn’s Services Policy/Procedure Manual
Standards of Care Postpartum

Page 11 of 11

L.

a.

The following shall be assessed:
i. IV insertion date

i, IV access type

ii. IV site and condition

iv. Patency

V. Dressing type and condition

vi. Date infusion changed

vii. Date central venous dressing changed

Saline lock insertion site(s) shall be assessed every shift, with flushes, prior to the
administration of medications and PRN.

Maintenance or continuous infusion shall be assessed every 2 hours and PRN
Infusion Therapy: Nursing Interventions

aoop

Peripheral 1V sites shall be changed every 4 days unless otherwise ordered.
Document initials and date IV started directly on the dressing.
Pre-hospital IV starts shall be discontinued and restarted within 48 hours of admission.
IV site shall be discontinued and restarted with complaint of persistent discomfort not
relieved by comfort measures, the presence of an infiltration, inflammation, pallor
phlebitis, bleeding at insertion site, or leaking of IV solution at insertion site
IV solutions and tubing shall be changed as follows:
i. Change every 4 days

1) All IV tubing

2) Add-on devices (neutral displacement connector MicroClave), antireflux,
extension set, etc.) and with tubing change

3) Rotate IV insertion sites

4) Commercially prepared solutions, if the bag is spiked once with initial start

5) Piggyback tubing (back flush with a minimum of 10 mL before and after
each piggyback

i. Change every 24 hours
1) All IV solutions mixed by pharmacy or nursing, uniess manufacturer’s

expiration recommends less than 24 hours
2) Lipids or lipid containing products
3) Neutral displacement connector (MicroClave, anti-reflux, extension set,
etc.) and with tubing change

Label IV tubing and/or neutral displacement connector (MicroClave) with change date
sticker indicating date tubing is to be changed using numerical day and month.
Label IV solutions with date and time IV solution hung and document in the EMR
Dressings shall be changed when damp, loose, soiled, or whenever dressing prevents
direct visualization of the site
Infusion pumps shall be used per TCMC Infusion Pump-Infusion System with Guardrails.
A separate site shall be used for research study drugs per TCMC Investigational Drugs
Policy.
Needleless components added to IV administration sets shall be changed every 4 days
unless contaminated or a catheter related infection is suspected or documented.
Swab Cap
i. When a Central Venous line injection port is not in use, place an erange-Swab

Cap on the unused pori(s).
ii. Apply a new Swab Cap

1) Every iime the cap is removed

2) Every 8 hours with routine IV flushing
. PRN 1V flushing

STANDARDS OF CARE: IMMUNIZATIONS/OTHER:

1.
2.

Rhogam will be administered if indicated
Rubella will be administered if needed

98



| Women's and Childrer'sNewborn’s Services Policy/Procedure Manual
Standards of Care Postpartum
Page 12 of 11
3. During the flu season: patients will be screened for influenza and vaccination will be

administered if indicated per Standardized Procedure Pneumococcal and Influenza Vaccine
Screening and Administration

4, All patients will be screened for Tetanus, Diphtheria, Pertussis (Tdap) and vaccination will be
administered if indicated per Standardized Procedure Tetanus, Diphtheria, and Pertussis (Tdap)
Vaccine Administration for Postpartum Patients.

M. REFERENCES:
1. American Academy of Pediatrics and American College of Obstetricians and Gynecologists

2012. Guidelines for Perinatal Care Seventh Edition. Washington, DC

2. American Nurses Association (ANA). (201004). Nursing scope and standards of practice. Silver
Spring, MD: Nursesbooks.org.
3. American Nurses Association (ANA). (2016). The nursing process. Retrieved from

http:/mww.nursingworld.org

4. Association of Women'’s Health, Obstetric and Neonatal Nurses (AWHONN). Standards for
Professional Nursing Practice in the Care of Women and Newborns, Sixth Edition.

3:5. Association of Women’s Health, Obstetric and Neonatal Nurses (AWHONN). Perinatal
Nursing. (2014). 4™ edition.

4:6.  California Board of Registered Nursing. (2010). Nursing practice act business and professions
code. Chapter 6 Nursing: Section 2725. Retrieved March 2010 from
hitp://www.rn.ca.gov/regulations/rn.shtmi

&:7.  Califernia Board of Registered Nursing. (2010). Standards of competent performance, California
code of regulations, title 16, section 1443.5. Retrieved March 2010 from
http://www.rn.ca.gov/regulations/rn.shiml

6.8. California Board of Registered Nursing. (2010). California code of regulations, title 22, section
70125. Retrieved March 2010 from http://www.rn.ca.gov/regulations/m.shtmi

9.  Mattson, S., & Smith, J.E. (Eds.) (2011) Core Curriculum for Maternal-Newborn Nursing (4" Ed. )
Philadelphia, PA: Saunders

99



